
Annual Report 2008

   Local 
        Strength 
Global 
    Expertise

K
o

o
n

 H
o

ld
in

g
s Lim

ite
d

    A
n

n
u

al R
ep

o
rt 2

0
0

8

Koon Holdings limited

Koon HoLdingS LimitEd
17B Pandan Road, Singapore 609269
Tel: 6261 5788 Fax: 6266 0117
Website: www.koon.com.sg
Australian Registration: ABRN 105 734 709
Singapore Company Registration: 200303284M

F
or

 p
er

so
na

l u
se

 o
nl

y



+65 6578 6522

Designed and produced by

Koon Holdings Limited  Annual Report 2008

'A1' Civil Engineering Contractor
Land Reclamation & Civil Engineering Specialist
ISO 9001: 2000, ISO 14001:2004 and 
OHSAS 18001:2007
Blue chip client base (Singapore Government)
Strong contracts-on-hand 
Strong financial position
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An Introduction to Koon

“One of Singapore’s largest domestic civil engineering,
reclamation and shore protection specialists”

50%

Koon Zinkcon  
Pte Ltd

75%

Jurong & Tuas
 Rock Contractors 

JV

50%

Mesco Sdn Bhd

20%

Joint Venture
(JV 1)

20%

Joint Venture
(JV 2)

20%

Joint Venture
(JV 3)

Koon Holdings 
Limited

100%

Entire Construction
Pte Ltd

100%

Entire Engineering
Pte Ltd

100%

Gems Marine
Pte Ltd

JV1: Penta-Ocean/Koon/Hyundai/Van Oord Joint Venture
JV2: Penta-Ocean/Koon-Ham-Dredging International-Boskalis Joint Venture
JV3: Penta-Ocean/Koon/Dredging International/Boskalis/Ham Joint Venture

100%

Koon Construction
& Transport
Co Pte Ltd

F
or

 p
er

so
na

l u
se

 o
nl

y



Koon Holdings Limited  Annual Report 2008 3

In 1979, Koon Construction and Transport Co., Pte 
Ltd (“Koon”) was incorporated and raised capital. 
With this boost in funds, it was able to increase 
manpower and equipment allowing it to collaborate 
more closely with international firms. This in turn 
allowed it to gain technical expertise. Koon focused 
on reclamation and related works.

In 1985, it went into a joint venture with a major 
marine engineering company, Zinkcon, to form 
Koon-Zinkcon which specialized in the protection of 
reclaimed shorelines. Zinkcon is part of Royal Boskalis 
Westminster nv (“Boskalis”), a major international 
dredging and offshore engineering firm. This joint 
venture was very successful. It was therefore decided 
to make it permanent and was incorporated in 1997 
as Koon-Zinkcon Pte Ltd (“KZ”). Whilst Koon still 
owns 50% of KZ, it is now being managed by persons 
independent of Koon. Accordingly, it is treated as an 
investment and only dividends accounted for.

Koon Holdings Limited (“Koon Holdings”), an 
investment holding company, was incorporated 
specifically for listing on the Australian Securities 
Exchange (“ASX”) and Singapore Exchange Limited 
(“SGX”). Koon is the main operating company of 
the Group.

The Group’s equipments is owned by separate entities. 
Entire Engineering Pte Ltd (“Entire Engineering”) 
owns and manages the Group’s land-based plant 
and equipment such as cranes, trucks and other 
construction equipment; while Gems Marine Pte Ltd 
(“Gems Marine”) owns and manages the Group’s 
waterborne assets such as tugboats and barges. Entire 
Construction Pte Ltd (“Entire Construction”) was also 
incorporated in 2008 to take on smaller construction 
projects.

GROUP ACTIVITIES

Construction Division

Koon has grown significantly since 1977 and is 
now arguably one of the largest Singapore domestic 
civil engineering, reclamation and shore protection 
specialists.

Koon is registered under the A1 category in civil 
engineering with the Building and Construction 
Authority (“BCA”). It is also certified in Integrated 
Management Systems covering Quality Management 
System (ISO 9001:2000), Environmental Management 
System (ISO 14001:2004) and Occupational Health and 
Safety Management System (OHSAS 18001:2007).

Koon operates as a main contractor on many of its 
projects. On larger scale projects, particularly those 
of reclamation, Koon participates in joint ventures 
with other partners. This is mainly due to project 
requirement reasons, as few groups have all the 
required resources to win and execute such projects 
alone.

During the last two decades, Koon has successfully 
completed a list of reclamation projects in Singapore 
which had contributed to the increase of Singapore’s 
land area by about twenty percent. These completed 
projects now form the new coastal lines of Singapore. 
They are at the NORTH – Punggol; SOUTH – Marina 
Bay, Tanjung Rhu, Sentosa Cove & Pasir Panjang; 
EAST – Changi and WEST – Jurong Island & Tuas 
View.

Over the last couple of years, Koon has executed 
a high percentage of water, sewage and power 
projects. Amongst the more notable are Bedok Water 

Heritage

Koon began in 1975 as a small sole proprietorship 
transporting rocks and stones for major 
international construction companies. With 
early success through good management and 
construction boom, Koon capitalised on this 
opportunity and move up the value chain.
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An Introduction To Koon

Reclamation Plant and Ulu Pandan Water Reclamation 
Plant. Our S$118 million Serangoon Reservoir project 
is still in progress.

In addition, infrastructure projects have become an 
important driver for Koon. In recent years, we have 
completed works like the Singapore Airshow, Pang 
Sua Canal and Meranti Infrastructure. We are currently 
executing the Construction Industries Park for BCA and 
Gardens by the Bay (Package 1) for the National Parks 
Board (“NParks”).

We have also commenced work on our East Coast 
and Pasir Ris Park shorelines restoration project for 
the Housing and Development Board (“HDB”). This 
project is significant in that it is one of the pioneer 
coastal engineering projects that the government has 
embarked on. With the continuous rise in sea level due 
to global warming, coastal engineering is slated to be 
an important driver of the construction industry in the 
mid to longer term.

Land-Based Rental Division

Established in the year 1983, Entire Engineering is 
also a wholly-owned subsidiary of Koon Holdings. 
It owns and manages the Group’s land-based plant 
and equipment such as cranes, trucks and other 
construction equipment.

Entire Engineering focuses on rental of machinery and 
equipment for construction needs to both internal 
(i.e. Koon Group of companies) and external clients. 
The machinery handled include crawler cranes, 
excavators, lorry cranes, tipper trucks, vibratory soil 
compactors and wheel loaders. Equipment handled 
consist of a variety of pump, such as pabool pumps, 
electrical submersible pumps, diesel water pumps, and 
chemical treatment plants. It also provides land-based 
transportation services.

Marine Logistics Division

Gems Marine, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Koon 
Holdings, was established in 1982 as a domestic 
tugboat and barge operator for the transportation of 
sand and rocks for Koon.

Over the years, Gems Marine has built up a solid 
reputation as a reliable marine logistics provider to 
our varied customers including various Multinational 
Corporations (“MNCs”) and local companies. It 
provides a comprehensive range of marine services 
such as inter-island marine transportation; carriage of 
dangerous goods; direct over-side loading/unloading 
of cargo; marine transportation to and from private 
jetty to anchorage and water-front facility for roll-on/
roll-off (“RORO”) operations and charter of tugboats 
and barges.
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Our Responsibilities, Vision and Mission

Below is a summary of:
•	 Our	responsibilities	with	respect	to	various	stakeholders;
•	 Our	beliefs	on	what	such	responsibilities	mean	today	and	over 

the next five years; and
•	 Our	intended	methods	of	discharging	these	responsibilities.

The summary shows what we are doing to achieve a balanced scorecard.

STAKEHOLDER RESPONSIBILITY VISION MISSION

Clients Get what they pay 
for plus a little 
more

•	 Reliable,	long	term	value	
add strategic partner
– within cost
– in time
– good quality
– other non-monetary goals

Main focus: knowledge, productivity and 
execution
– cost efficient (lower MYE etc.)
– design & build (alliances, more efficient 

design)
– turnkey, financial and complex solutions
– anticipate needs
– one stop service

Suppliers & 
Subcontractors

Long term 
business 
partnership

•	 To	outsource	all	non-
mission critical activities
– labour intensive business
– select procurements
– specialist one-off work

Main focus: to be a reliable, long term quality 
buyer
– fair margins
– reasonable payment terms
– good credit risk

Employees Preferred employer •	 First	class	employer Strong technical and commercial management.
Trained and well motivated staff.
– personal growth opportunities
– appropriate remuneration
– good working environment
– good communications

Providers of 
debt capital

Premium client •	 Strong	financial	position
•	 Reasonable	&	loyal	

customers

Good risk management that includes good 
tendering, cashflow and debt management
– reasonable net gearing
– low contingent liabilities
– first right of refusal
– good communications

Providers of 
equity capital

Maximise returns •	 Absolute	return	plus	solid	
capital growth

Management of industry cycles to ensure good 
steady performance
– profitable (absolute return)
– 15-20% pa capital growth
– consistent dividend
– transparency & communication
– good corporate governance

Society Good corporate 
citizen

•	 Good	Corporate	
governance

•	 Value	add	to	society
– Aware of wider 

community issues

Conscious of responsibilities to society as a 
whole
– meet all national obligations
– sustainable construction & the environment
– participation in social needs

OUR 

RESPONSIBILITIES, 

VISION and

MISSION
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Financial Year Review

Revenue declined
– Due to absence of large projects 

reaching 20% completion for 
construction division mitigated by 
double digit growth in the marine 
logistics and land based rental 
divisions

Gross margin declined
– Due to cost escalations and 

provisions made for unforeseen 
losses

– Due to write-offs and one-
off payments arising from our 
rationalisation and steamlining of 
management, project management 
teams and strengthening of cost 
controls after change of top 
management

Other operating income declined
– Due to a sharp decline in dividends 

received from KZ during the year 
as compared to last year mitigated 
by gains from disposal of plant 
and equipment and increase in 
rental income

Administrative expenses 
decreased
– Due to reduction in impairment on 

held for trading investments in the 
current year

Cashflow improved
– Operating activities: Inflow due 

to better Debtor and Creditor 
management and tax receivable 
recovered

– Investing activities: inflow from 
disposal of barges

–	 Financing	 activities:	 Outflow	 due	
to repayments of bank loans and 
hire purchases

For the Year ending 31 December
Financial Performance (S$ million)

FY2008 FY2007

Revenue 122.29 142.42
Cost of sales (118.50) (135.06)

Gross Profit 3.79 7.36

Other operating income 4.15 5.47
Administrative expenses (5.63) (6.22)
Other operating expenses – 0.04 
Finance	costs (0.19) (0.18)

Profit before income tax 2.12 6.47 
Income tax (0.15) (0.29)

Profit for the period attributable 
to shareholders 1.97 6.18

Cashflow (S$ million)

FY2008 FY2007

Operating cashflows before movement 
in working capital 5.31 3.63
Net cashflow from (used in) operating 
activities 1.38 (5.29)
Net cash from investing activities 1.00 2.25
Net cash (used in) from financing activities (3.11) 0.37

Net increase in cash and cash 
equivalents 4.58 0.96
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 
2007 5.42 4.46

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 
2008 10.00 5.42
Add: Pledged fixed deposits 5.50 4.24

Total cash at the end of the period 15.50 9.66
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Financial 
Year 

Review

FY2008 FY2007

ASSETS
Current assets

10.00 5.42 Cash and bank balances
31.61 12.85 Trade receivables

1.01 3.45 Other receivables and prepayments
18.91 20.37 Contract work-in-progress

0.04 0.09 Held for Trading investments
0.50 0.50 Available for sale investments

62.07 42.68 Total current assets
Non-current assets

5.50 4.24 Pledged fixed deposits
* * Associate

11.59 10.66 Property, plant and equipment

17.09 14.90 Total non-current assets

79.16 57.58 Total assets

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current liabilities

0.59 0.59 Current portion of long-term bank loan
37.78 24.86 Trade payables

2.53 3.12 Other payables and accruals
7.35 0.37 Contract work-in-progress
0.03 0.03 Income tax payable
1.52 0.78 Current portion of finance leases

49.80 29.75 Total current liabilities
Non-current liabilities

0.73 1.33 Long-term bank loans
1.55 1.54 Finance	Leases
0.57 0.42 Deferred income tax

2.85 3.29 Total non-current liabilities

52.65 33.04 Total Liabilities

Capital and Reserves
6.66 6.66 Share capital

13.00 13.00 Capital reserve
6.85 4.88 Accumulated profits

26.51 24.54 Total equity

79.16 57.58 Total liabilities and equity
* Amount less than S$ 1,000.

Cash and bank balances increased
– Please refer to cashflow

Trade and Other receivables and 
prepayments increased
– Mainly due to increase in back to back 

joint venture bookings

Contract work in progress decreased
– Mainly due to decrease in projects with 

less than 20% completion

Property, plant and equipment 
increased
– Due to additions & replacement of 

Property, plant and equipment

Bank loans decreased
– Due to repayments of term loans

Trade and other payables and accruals 
increased
– Mainly due to increase in back to back 

joint venture bookings

Finance leases increased
– Due to additional financing required 

for plant and equipment addition and 
replacements

Deferred tax liabilities increased
– Due to accelerated tax depreciation 

attributable to additions of plant and 
equipment during the year.

For the Year ending 31 December
Financial Position (S$ million)

F
or

 p
er

so
na

l u
se

 o
nl

y



Koon Holdings Limited  Annual Report 20088

Our Share Price

2004 2005 2006 2007 2008

Earnings Per Share (Singapore cents) 1.88 0.11 -3.47 7.62 2.43

Net Tangible Assets Per Share (Singapore cents) 27.22 26.14 22.67 30.30 32.73

KNH’s Performance on ASX
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From the Chairman's Office

Dear Stakeholders,

The sub-prime crisis which started in 2007 has affected global economies. Despite 
robust growth during 2007, major Asian economies including Singapore, since 
middle of 2008, began to feel the impact of the crisis. The sub-prime crisis has 
led to a significant decline of demand in the construction industry especially in the 
private sector.

The Singapore economy grew by only 1.1%1 in 2008, as compared to the robust 
growth of 7.8%2 in 2007. The construction sector had experienced an overall full year 
growth of about 20.33, a slight increase from the growth in 2007 of 18.2%4.

The year had begun with a strong Q1 year-on-year 
construction sector growth of 145.2%, a significant 
improvement over the same period of the previous year. 
However, the financial crisis had caused the performance 
during subsequent quarters to experience significant 
fluctuations.

Although the growth in the local construction industry 
during 2008 was mainly attributed to increases in 

YAO CHEE LIEW
Chairman

Contracts Awarded: (year-on-year change)5

2007 2008

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

Contracts awarded 31.5% 103.9% -23.3% 127.7% 145.2% 27.5% 61.2% -6.9%

Public -16.3% 68.8% 98.4.% 79.9% 272.5% 47.3% 105.1% 205.2%

Private 61.2% 113.3% -39.7% 147.4% 104.1% 23.2% 41.6% -70.4%

Certified Payments: (year-on-year change)6

2007 2008

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

Contracts awarded 19.7% 31.6 % 38.7% 60.3% 39.2% 50.9% 46.6% 31.4%

Public -6.0% 5.4% 5.7% 10.9% 5.6% 42.8% 51.7% 47.3%

Private 45.9% 47.1% 59.2% 91.8% 61.3% 54.3% 44.5% 25.5%

1 Economic Survey of Singapore 2008 Page i & 2
2 Economic Survey of Singapore 2008 Page i & 2
3 Economic Survey of Singapore 2008 Page ii & 2
4 Economic Survey of Singapore 2008 Page ii & 2

demand in the public sector, the private sector certified 
payments for the year as a whole had significantly 
outpaced those in the public sector (S$17.8 billion as 
compared to S$7.5 billion7). As certified payments lag 
contracts awarded, shows that the flow through benefits 
from public sector growth will only be realised in 2009 
and beyond.

5 Economic Survey of Singapore 2008 Page 152
6 Economic Survey of Singapore 2008 Page 152
7 Economic Survey of Singapore 2008 Page 152
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From the Chairman's Office

With the surge in construction activities in 2006 and 
2007, the prices of many basic construction materials 
(such as steel reinforcement bars, granite, cement, 
concreting sand and fuel) also rose strongly. However, 
in line with the current slowdown, prices of many 
basic	construction	materials	have	begun	to	soften.	For	
example, prices of steel reinforcement bars saw an 
increase of some 78% during 1H 2008 as compared 
to the same period in 2007, have dropped by some 
8% since September 2008 compared to the previous 
months8. The prices of other basic construction materials 
have also displayed similar price movements. Manpower 
costs have also increased, mainly due to shortages 
created by the previous increase in construction demand.

In addition to these developments, the uncertainty of 
marine sand supply from neighbouring countries for 
reclamation remains and continues to delay reclamation 
activities in Singapore. This has adversely affected the 
performance of our 50% owned investment, KZ and 
certain projects of the Group.

In view of the above circumstances, the Board of 
Directors believes that the full year results of the Group, 
for the year ended 31 December 2008, should be 
considered more than satisfactory.

Our reputation within the local construction industry 
remains stalwart as we understand via feedbacks from 
our customers and project partners. This is reassuring, 
given our continual efforts in providing value for money 
engineering deliverables and services to our customers 
through the years.

Corporate Developments

Resignation of Independent Director and Non-
executive Chairman of the Board

On 20 November 2008, Dr. Wang Kai Yuen resigned 
from the Company as Independent Director and Non-
executive Chairman of the Board and also relinquished 
his positions within the various board committees of the 
Company, as he had taken on additional responsibilities 
elsewhere and anticipated having to spend more time on 
such activities.

We extend our thanks and gratitude to Dr. Wang for his 
invaluable contribution and wish him all the best in his 
endeavors.

With Dr. Wang’s departure, I was invited by the 
Company to fill in the role of Independent Director and 
Non-executive Chairman of the Board, as the Board of 

Directors felt that my experiences will compliment the 
future growth of the Company. I will do my best to 
serve and contribute to the growth of the Group and it’s 
stakeholders to the best of my abilities.

Group Rationalisation and Restructure

In July 2008, Mr Tan Thiam Hee was appointed as the 
new Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer of 
the Group. Under his leadership, he spearheaded the 
Group rationalisation exercise, thereby streamlining 
management,  project  management teams and 
strengthened costs controls.

On 31 December 2008, the ownership of Gems Marine 
and Entire Engineering were also transferred from Koon 
to Koon Holdings. The Group restructure was effected 
to streamline the reporting structure as well as for better 
risk management.

The Future

The keys to profitability in 2009 will be the sustainability 
of the state of growth of the civil engineering industry 
and the supply of marine sand. While there are 
indications that the state of growth will be sustainable, 
we remain modest in our expectations and will be 
enhancing our efforts in search of other business 
opportunities, such as offshore expansion and product/
service diversification.

On behalf of the Board, I would like to express my 
heartfelt appreciation to all our shareholders, employees 
and business partners, for their support which enabled 
our continued business achievements over the years.

We look forward to your continuing support as Koon 
Holdings moves ahead in 2009 and beyond.

Yao Chee Liew
Non-Executive Chairman and Independent Director

8 Economic Survey of Singapore Q3 2008 Page 10
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The Chief Executive Officer’s Report
– Review of Operations

REVENUES

The year had begun with an improvement in the local public contracts 
awarded during the first quarter of 2008 from the last quarter of the 2007. 

However, the subsequent three quarters in 2008 had experienced a decline in 
activities; with each consecutive quarter showing a further decline as compared to the preceding 
quarter, suggesting that the impacts of the global financial crisis which commenced during 2007 
has started to take its toll on the local construction industry. Notwithstanding, it was comforting 
that the impacts of the crisis has affected the public sector construction demand to a lesser extend 
as compared to the private sector.

Contracts Awarded: year-on-year growth*

2007 2008

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4
Contracts awarded 31.5% 103.9% -23.3% 127.7% 145.2% 27.5% 61.2% -6.9%
Public -16.3% 68.8% 98.4.% 79.9% 272.5% 47.3% 105.1% 205.2%
Private 61.2% 113.3% -39.7% 147.4% 104.1% 23.2% 41.6% -70.4%
*Source: Economic Survey of Singapore 2008

-40.0%

-20.0%

0.0%

20.0%

40.0%

60.0%

80.0%

100.0%

120.0%

140.0%

160.0%

Q1 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4Q2 Q3

2007 2008

31.5

103.9

127.7

145.2

27.5

61.2

-23.3 -6.9

Movement in Total Contracts awarded (%) 

F
or

 p
er

so
na

l u
se

 o
nl

y



Koon Holdings Limited  Annual Report 2008 13

-50.0%

0.0%

50.0%

100.0%

150.0%

200.0%

250.0%

300.0%

Q1 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4Q2 Q3

2007 2008
-16.3

68.8

98.4
79.9

272.5

47.3

105.1

205.2

Movement in Public Sector Contracts awarded (%)

Our revenues for the year had declined by about 14.5% as compared to the previous year. This 
is mainly attributed to our accounting policy of not booking revenues or profits until a project 
is at least 20% completed. As a result of our accounting policy, projects which are reasonably 
large will naturally require a longer time to reach the recognition threshold and during the initial 
period of recognition, will provide an uplift to revenues in that period. 2007 had enjoyed a higher 
revenue due to several large projects reaching their 20% revenue recognition level, but which 
had commenced in the preceding year, i.e. 2006.

Historical Revenue Trend (S$’000)
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The Chief Executive Officer’s Report
– Review of Operations

Sources of Revenue

Land-based Rental

Marine Logistics

Construction

Breakdown of Revenues by Division (%)

2007 2008

3%
8%

89%92%

2%6%

Construction activities

Our revenues have been by tradition, primarily derived from two main sources of activities: reclamation and 
shore protection; and civil engineering.

Reclamation and shore protection work consist of all activities required to reclaim land from the sea and protect 
the shoreline of reclaimed areas, whereas civil engineering work can be divided into two parts, namely: work 
involving significant building and installation work such as power plants, sewage plants and water works and 
work without building and installation work such as roads, bridges and other incidental works.

As mentioned above, revenue from our construction division had decreased compared to the previous year. This 
is mainly due to the uplift to revenues during the previous year, from revenue bookings of larger projects which 
had commenced in 2006. 

Beside the projects which started in 2007, several projects which had commenced during 2008, such as the Tuas 
View Extension Phase 1A; Gardens by the Bay at Marina South and Jurong Island Drainage Extension Area 3B5 
projects, also contributed to the revenue for 2008.

Over the last few years, the industry’s inability to source marine sand (which is crucial raw material in reclamation 
projects), has hindered significant reclamation works from being resumed or completed. The nation’s blueprint 
for the expansion of the island has also had to be deferred as a result.

To date, a significant amount of reclamation projects at both KZ and within the Group itself remains outstanding, 
which will resume once adequate supplies of marine sand becomes available.
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Land based rental activities

Our land based rental division is mainly involved in the leasing of construction equipments. During the year 
conducted a business rationalisation exercise, resulting in a more streamlined management structure. This, 
together with our refined resource management process, has enabled us to deploy resources more effectively 
and efficiently in day-to-day operations and in sourcing of new avenues for improving our business. In addition 
to supporting the construction division, our land based rental division has, commenced provision of its services 
to external customers, which in turn has enabled us to substantially improve revenues and profitability from our 
land based rental activities.

Marine logistics activities

Our marine logistics division is involved in the provision of tugboats and barges, chartering services; provision of 
RORO facilities and other marine logistical support services.

As with our land based rental activities, resources were more efficiently utilised after the establishment of a 
more streamlined management structure. This has enabled the division to substantially improve its revenues and 
profitability compared to the previous year.

MARGIN AND COSTS

Gross Operating Margins

Although we reported losses during our interim report, and then returned to profitability for the year as a whole, 
gross operating profits have decreased compared to 2007. The decrease was mainly attributed to the adverse 
effects of cost escalations (i.e. of construction materials, fuel and manpower which continued through till 3Q 
2008) and provisions made for unforeseen losses.

Audited Financial Performance for the year ended 31 December (S$’000)
2004 2005 2006 2007 2008

 Revenue and other income 105,161 104,800 112,596 147,880 126,440
 Gross Operating Profit 5,952 4,114 1,020 7,359 3,785
 Investment Income after Tax 100 1 – 4,003 1,500
 Net Profit after Tax 1,522 86 (2,809) 6,176 1,971
As a Percentage of Revenue and other income
 Net Profit after Tax 1.4% 0.1% -2.5% 4.2% 1.6%
Major Expenses
 Administrative Expenses Excluding Depreciation 4,210 4,819 4,836 5,793 5,272
 Depreciation 1,406 1,328 1,645 1,028 1,235
	 Interest	and	Financing	Cost 135 110 137 176 190

Gross operating margins remain a constant concern for us, especially when margins for projects in Singapore 
remain fine; and thus any errors in tendering can have a noticeable effect on our financial performance.
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The Chief Executive Officer’s Report
– Review of Operations

Net Profit Margin

The net profit achieved in 2008 has declined compared to 2007. This was mainly due to the sharp decline in 
dividends received from KZ and write-offs and one-time expenses arising from the rationalisation and streamlining 
of management; project management teams and the strengthening of cost controls after the change of top 
management in the middle of the year. 

Weak margins continue to remain a universal concern. It is a problem that will likely dissipate when demand for 
construction further improves, and especially when award of reclamation contracts resume, from which we have 
enjoyed above industry margins in the past.

FINANCIAL POSITION

Balance Sheet

Financial Position as at 31 December (S$’000)
2004 2005 2006 2007 2008

Current Assets 41,026 46,705 38,558 42,681 62,071

Non-Current Assets 10,145 9,849 10,680 14,894 17,091

Total Assets 51,171 56,554 49,238 57,575 79,162

Current Liabilities 27,524 34,747 29,575 29,753 49,799

Non-Current Liabilities 1,589 635 1,300 3,283 2,853

Total Liabilities 29,113 35,382 30,875 33,036 52,652
Shareholders’	Fund 22,058 21,172 18,363 24,539 26,510

Total Liabilities and Equity 51,171 56,554 49,238 57,575 79,162

Current Assets to Current Liabilities 149% 134% 130% 143% 125%
Total Debt to Total Assets 4.7% 9.5% 4.7% 7.4% 5.6%
Net	Cash	to	Shareholders’	Funds* 33% 5% 33% 22% 42%
Total	Debt	(Loans	and	Finance	Leases) 2,380 5,345 2,306 4,239 4,400
Net Cash (Total Cash less Total Debt)* 7,351 974 6,041 5,421 11,109
Gross Profit on Total Assets 11.6% 7.3% 2.1% 12.8% 4.8%
Net	Profit	on	Shareholders’	Funds 6.9% 0.4% -15.3% 25.2% 7.4%

* Includes cash, cash equivalents and fixed deposits pledged

The financial position of the Group remains healthy. Our level of liquidity has improved. Our current ratio now 
stands at 125% and our net cash has increased substantially. This is primarily due to a combination of our 
successful recovery of a long outstanding tax receivable and our increased efforts in debtor management.
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Net Debt and Cashflow

Net Indebtedness of the Group (S$’000)

2004 2005 2006 2007 2008

Short-term debts 0 3,109 0 0 0
Current portion of
 Long-term debt 360 360 240 593 593

 Obligations under financial lease 608 1,372 897 784 1,524

Total current debt 968 4,841 1,137 1,377 2,117
Non-current portion of
 Long-term debt 600 240 0 1,323 730

 Obligations under financial lease 812 264 1,169 1,539 1,553

Total non-current debt 1,412 504 1,169 2,862 2,283

Total debt 2,380 5,345 2,306 4,239 4,400

Cash and bank balance* 9,045 6,319 8,347 9,660 15,509
Dividends receivable 1,658 0 0 0 0

Dividends payable (972) 0 0 0 0

Total cash adjusted for dividends receivable/payable 9,731 6,319 8,347 9,660 15,509

Net cash/(debt) 7,351 974 6,041 5,421 11,109
* Includes cash, cash equivalents and fixed deposits pledged

Our debt levels remain modest and primarily comprise of loans taken for plant and equipment replacement/ 
additions, which are used for supporting on-going projects.

Our cashflow has improved significantly during the year. We generated about S$1.4 million from our operations, 
received about S$1 million from disposal of certain fixed assets and used up S$3.1 million in instalment payments 
to financial institutions.

FY2008 FY2007
(S$ million) (S$ million)

Operating cashflows before movement in working capital 5.31 3.63
Net cashflow from (used in) operating activities 1.38 (5.29)
Net cash from investing activities 1.00 2.25

Net cash (used in) from financing activities (3.11) 0.37

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 4.58 0.96

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 2007 5.42 4.46

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 2008 10.00 5.42

Add: Pledged fixed deposits 5.50 4.24

Total cash at the end of the period 15.50 9.66F
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The Chief Executive Officer’s Report
– Review of Operations

STATEMENT FOR STAKEHOLDERS

Most materials required for our project needs were purchased by us directly, while majority of our labour 
requirements were outsourced to labour contractors. As such, about 89.4 cents per dollar of earnings have 
flowed to our subcontractors or suppliers. 

The chart below shows how the remaining earnings have been distributed amongst our stakeholders. Of the 
remaining 10.6 cents, our employees had received 7.8 cents, and the banks and other providers of capital had 
received 0.1 cents in interest and capital repayments. We reserved 1.0 cents for plant and equipment reinvestment 
(through depreciation charges), and the tax authorities had received about 0.1 cents, with the remaining 1.5 
cents retained for our shareholders.

1.0%
0.2%

7.8%

1.5%

0.1%

89.4%

Suppliers & Subcontractors

Employees

Other capital providers

Set aside for capital reinvestment

Inland Revenue

Shareholders

Customers: Customer satisfaction remains one of our priorities. “Koon aims to achieve excellence in 
Customer Satisfaction by providing Quality Services and Products. We will strive to preserve the 
Environment by preventing pollution; ensure the Safety and protect the Health of our stakeholders by 
preventing injuries and ill health. We are committed to comply with legal and other requirements and 
Continual Improvement of our Integrated Management System” is a stated QEHS (Quality, Environmental 
and Occupational Health & Safety) Policy statement. Results from the 2008 annual survey performed indicated 
continued high levels of customers’ satisfaction. 

Suppliers & Subcontractors: We have always maintained a close working relationship with suppliers and 
subcontractors. Our promptness in payment has differentiated us from our competitors. This practice has 
ensured that we continue to be provided with good service and prompt deliveries. Over the longer term, it is 
our intention and in our interest to nurture our subcontractors. As we grow, the goodwill from subcontractors 
should translate into value-added services being provided to us at competitive prices. Such benefits will strengthen 
our competitive edge in the industry.

F
or

 p
er

so
na

l u
se

 o
nl

y



Koon Holdings Limited  Annual Report 2008 19

Employees: We believe that quality and value-adding are crucial to our industry’s future, and have therefore 
continued emphasis on our training program. We constantly ensure that our employees are trained by reputable 
external training centres and that they attend in-house programs. We believe such training motivates staff and 
further enhances their sense of security and value. They get to perform a variety of duties which makes their 
job more challenging and rewarding. 

Providers of debt capital: Having a close relationship with providers of capital is important in a volatile industry 
such as ours. Our main bankers are currently Development Bank of Singapore (“DBS”) and United Overseas Bank 
(“UOB”) who have provided good services to us. Our bankers’ confidence in the company has remained high 
over the years.

Providers of equity capital: The construction industry has been volatile over the past few years, and it remains 
our constant aim to try to manage this volatility and provide as much return to shareholders as possible. 

Social Responsibility: It is our goal to be a model corporate citizen. We intend to achieve this goal by being a 
prompt taxpayer; a value-added provider to our customers and society; and be environmentally responsible by 
complying with the Rio Declaration on Environment and Development.

OUTLOOK AND PROSPECTS

Although the Ministry of Trade and Industry (“MTI”) has forecasted that the economy will contract by 2% to 
5% in 20099, the Building and Construction Authority (“BCA”) has however projected that the total demand 
for the construction sector will moderate to a sustainable S$22 billion to S$28 billion in 2009, with the public 
sector being the key driver in construction demand and is anticipated to award a historical high of between S$17 
billion and S$19 billion worth of projects in 2009. Demand in the private sector for all types of construction 
projects, with the exception of the institutional and other building segment, has however been projected to 
soften significantly to between S$5 billion and S$9 billion. In addition, with the robust demand in construction 
during the past 2 years, BCA projects construction output to further grow and peak at about S$29 billion to 
S$30 billion in 2009, before moderating slightly in 2010. With these projected heightened activities, demand 
for cement, granite, concreting sand and steel reinforcement bars are expected to rise by about 15%, but 
construction costs may likely moderate with the slackening global demand and easing of global freight and fuel 
costs amid the gloomy economic outlook10.

Though the outlook for demand in public construction for 2009 looks to be sustainable, the inability of Singapore 
to source marine sand at reasonable prices continues to be a cloud over our horizon. The Group continues to 
seek to maximize its available resources and to actively grow through both business and geographical expansion. 
The Group’s assets have been reorganised to enhance responsibility and accountability. Where utilisation or yields 
are low, reviews are performed to decide whether to retain or dispose of such inefficient assets. The Group is 
further looking at ways to exploit its strength in civil engineering works, especially in marine-based works, to 
take on similar projects in the region. The Group is also seeking to strengthen its capacity and capabilities in the 
general building segment through strategic alliance or joint ventures, thereby increasing its sources of revenue. 
The Group will be increasing its efforts towards this commitment in 2009.

9 Economic Survey of Singapore 2008 Page 70
10 Economic Survey of Singapore 2008 Page 49
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The Chief Executive Officer’s Report
– Review of Operations

  Contracts Awarded for Construction Industry

(S$ million)
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(Source: Economic Survey of Singapore)
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 Koon’s Market Share
(Certified Public Payments)*

(%)
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2.50%

3.00%

Market share

Year

2004 2005 2006 2007 2008

* includes general building and civil engineering works

Despite the continual keen competition in the local construction industry, we remain confident of our stalwart 
position in the market. The strong bonds we have developed with our subcontractors and suppliers over the years 
provide us with a comparative advantage in terms of pricing and cost savings which we, in turn, can transfer 
onto our clients. Nonetheless, international competitors may still pose a challenge to us in design-and-build 
projects. New players in the industry may also tender jobs at losses or ‘purchase’ jobs in order to secure local 
market presence.
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Nonetheless:

•	 Foreign	competitors	remain	noteworthy	contenders;	and

•	 The	issue	on	marine	sand	supply	remains	unresolved.

Our outstanding order book on hand is about S$120.7 million, which does not include prospective revenue from 
reclamation work which is still outstanding from KZ. However, the availability of marine sand supplies continues 
to remain uncertain, thereby preventing the resumption of our reclamation work. 

While there are projections depicting the sustainability of the public construction sector, we remain conservative 
in our expectations and will be doubling our continual efforts in search of other business opportunities.

Tan Thiam Hee
Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer
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Background of Directors & 
Key Management Staff

Corporate Information

TAN THIAM HEE
Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer

Age: 39

Mr. Tan joined the Group in 2008 and brings with him more than 15 
years experiences from various industries. Before joining the Company, 
Mr. Tan had been with the Haw Par Corporation Limited as its Group 
Financial	Controller	and	Company	Secretary	since	2006.	Before	joining	Haw	
Par Group, he had worked in the same capacity for ASL Marine Holdings 
Ltd for 3 years between 2003 and 2006. Before 2006, he was with Hua Kok 
International	Limited	(now	known	as	Abterra	Ltd)	for	7	years,	as	its	Group	Financial	Controller	and	
Company Secretary, as well as an Executive Director. Prior to joining Hua Kok, he had worked as 
an auditor with various reputable medium and large sized international public accounting firms. 

Mr. Tan has a Master of Business Administration in International Business and a Bachelor of Accountancy 
(Merit) from the Nanyang Technological University of Singapore. He is also a non-practising Certified Public 
Accountant (Singapore) and a member of the Singapore Institute of Directors. 

YAO CHEE LIEW
Non-Executive Chairman and Independent Director

Chairman of Nominating Committee; and member of the Audit and 
Compensation Committees
Age: 70

Mr. Yao joined the Group in 2008 and brought with him more than 40 
years of experience in the construction industry. He had worked in the 

Housing and Development Board (“HDB”) of Singapore for more than 35 
years before his retirement in 1998 as its Deputy Chief Executive Officer in 

charge of the Building and Development Division. Between 1995 and 1998, he was 
also the Chairman of CESMA International Pte Ltd, a wholly owned subsidiary of HDB providing 
consultancy services in planning, design and project management both in Singapore and overseas. 
From	1999	and	2003,	he	was	engaged	by	Hua	Kok	International	Ltd	(now	known	as	Abterra	Ltd),	
a Main Board listed construction company, as its Group Managing Director and was later promoted 
to the position of Group Executive Deputy Chairman.

Mr. Yao had obtained his Bachelor of Engineering from the University of Sydney in Australia.

OH KENG LIM
Executive Director

Age: 70

Keng Lim joined the predecessor to Koon in 1976, when the sole 
proprietorship was preparing for its conversion into a private partnership 
in 1977. Before this Keng Lim was involved in several trading ventures. 

Over the last 27 years, Keng Lim has been involved in the project 
accounting, administration and risk controls of the Company. He has 

since devolved many of his day-to-day duties and now primarily serves in a 
supervisory and oversight capacity. He is the main contact person for, and oversees 

the Company’s interest in Entire Engineering and Gems Marine. Keng Lim remains very familiar 
with all aspects of the Company’s businesses, particularly with the Company’s many suppliers. 
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OH KOON SUN
Executive Director
Age: 61

Koon Sun and the late Mr. Aw Joo Kim (his father) co-founded the 
predecessor to the Company in 1975. The predecessor was a sole 
proprietorship involved in the business of transporting stone and rocks. 

Koon Sun was in charge of that sole proprietorship, namely as a sub-
contractor for Obayashi on the East Coast V reclamation. Prior to founding 

the sole proprietorship, Koon Sun was involved in the family’s trading business. 
His extensive hands-on experience in trading and deep familiarity of local businesses, 

benefits Koon, as his principal task at the Company is the negotiation of quantity, quality and 
price of stone, rock, equipments, tugs & barges, with selected subcontractors and for the sourcing 
of consumables.

CHRISTOPHER CHONG MENG TAK
Non-Executive and Independent Director 

Chairman of the Audit and Compensation Committees and a 
Member of the Nominating Committee

Age: 50

Christopher is a partner of ACH Investments Pte Ltd., a specialist corporate 
advisory firm in Singapore. Prior to co-founding ACH Investments Pte 
Ltd, Christopher was a multi-award winning analyst and the Managing 
Director of HSBC James Capel Securities (Singapore) Pte Ltd (now known as 
HSBC Securities (Singapore) Pte Ltd), a member of the HongkongBank Group 
of companies. 

Christopher has significant experience in corporate governance and corporate affairs.  Christopher 
is also a Director of 8 other public companies and funds listed on the Australian, Singapore and 
Luxembourg Stock Exchanges. Christopher is also a Director and/or adviser to public and private 
companies, to several significant Asian families and to a regulatory branch of the Singapore 
Government. 

Christopher has a Bachelor of Science (Econs), a Master of Business Administration, is a member 
of	 the	 Institute	of	Chartered	Accountants	of	 Scotland,	 a	 Fellow	of	 the	Hong	Kong	 Institute	of	
Certified	 Public	 Accountants,	 a	 Fellow	 of	 the	 Singapore	 Institute	 of	 Directors,	 a	 Fellow	 of	 the	
Australian Institute of Company Directors and a Master Stockbroker of the Securities & Derivatives 
Industry Association of Australia.

GLENDA MARY SORRELL-SAUNDERS
Non-Executive and Independent Director 

Member of the Audit, Compensation and Nominating Committees 
Age: 51

Glenda is the Managing Director of Matrix Management Group Pty Ltd, 
a Project Management and Quantity Surveying firm with operations in 
Victoria and Tasmania. Prior to co-founding Matrix Management Group, 

Glenda worked as a Director, with Rawlinson (Aust) Pty. Ltd.

Glenda	 started	her	 professional	 life	with	 Farrow	 Laing	 and	 Partners	 in	 South	
Africa. Glenda has considerable experience in major industrial and civil projects including: 
infrastructure work for Australia Post; Sasol’s oil from coal project; steel-processing plants; and 
on coal, diamond & gold mines. Glenda also lectured at the University of the Witwatersrand in 
the	Faculty	of	Architecture	during	the	1990’s	prior	to	her	immigration	to	Australia.	

Glenda has a Bachelor of Science (Quantity Surveying) from the University of Witwatersrand, South 
Africa and is a Tasmanian Division Councillor of the Property Council of Australia. She is also a 
member of the Australian Institute of Quantity Surveyors.
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Background of Directors & 
Key Management Staff

Corporate Information

NG BENG BENG
Group Finance Manager

Age: 39

Beng Beng joined the Group in 2008. Prior to joining the Group, he 
had worked at the Sinar Mas Group conglomerate and in listed entities 
such as Hua Kok International Ltd; ASL Marine Holdings Ltd and Haw 
Par Corporation Limited, as well as other privately-owned Private Limited 
companies. He has more than 10 years of working experience in the 
construction and related industries, with experiences in corporate governance; 
listing requirement compliance; corporate secretarial matters; taxation and legal 
matters etc. He also has experiences in handling Merger and Acquisition projects; Initial Public 
Offerings and funds raising exercises. 

Beng Beng has a Bachelor of Accountancy from the Nanyang Technological University of 
Singapore.

LEE YU LEUNG
Group Financial Controller 

Age: 37  

Yu Leung joined the Group in 2005. Prior to this, he was working as a 
consultant with various local accounting and financial advisory firms for 
about 3 years, participating in various local and overseas assignments 

such as litigation support; special reviews, external financial and internal 
audit; and reconstruction of accounts.  Prior to working as a consultant, he 

worked at two reputable medium and large sized international public accounting 
firms for about 4 years. 

He	has	a	Master	of	Accountancy	and	a	Bachelor	of	Financial	Administration	from	the	University	
of New England in Australia; and is also a Certified Practising Accountant (Australia).

JUSLENE AW
Group HR & Admin. Manager

Age: 36

Juslene joined the Group in 1990 as a Project Administrative Officer.  Her 
role then was to handling all administrative works, including staff and 
workers welfare, and providing support to the Project Manager.  After 

several years of site experience, Juslene was transferred to the head office 
where she was tasked to handle the corporate administration works which 

includes IT infrastructure and human resources for the construction division. 
In 2008, Juslene was promoted to the position of Group HR and Admin Manager handling all 
corporate administration works for to the Group of companies.  

Juslene has both a Diploma in Human Resource Management from the Singapore Human Resources 
Institute and a Diploma in Business Administration from the Productivity and Standards Board.  
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CHUI SIEW SING
Tenders and Contracts Manager (Construction Division)
Age: 42

Siew Sing joined the Group in 1990. As Head of the Tenders and 
Contracts department, he manages and oversees the Group’s tendering 
system, which includes identification of potential tenders; identification 

of potential risks; preparing tender submission; attending tender interviews 
and furnishing of required replies. Siew Sing also manages the procurement 

of major supplies and subcontracts for awarded projects. He also provides advice 
on contractual matters to project teams. 

Siew Sing has a Bachelor of Science (Hons) in Building from the National University of 
Singapore.

TAY TIAK POH
General Manager (Construction Division)

Age: 53

Tiak Poh joined the Group in 2008 as General Manager (Projects & 
Business Development). He has more than 20 years of experience in the 
construction industry and had worked with various organizations including 

the government agency, developers and contractors. He oversees a team 
of Senior Managers for the various projects undertaken by the Group’s 

construction division and is also in-charge of developing and promoting 
business opportunities with existing and potential clients, suppliers and subcontractors 

in the industry. 

Tiak Poh has a Bachelor of Engineering in Civil and Structural Engineering from the National 
University of Singapore and a Master of Science in International Construction Management from 
the Nanyang Technological University.

MOK CHIN KET
Senior Technical Manager (Construction Division)

Age: 57

Chin Ket joined the Group in 1996. He was previously a Senior Resident 
Engineer with the Port of Singapore Authority Corporation (“PSA”). 
Chin Ket joined PSA in 1979 and was with PSA for some 17 years during 
which he was involved in and oversaw the impressive growth of the port 
of Singapore into one of the world’s busiest ports. As the Head of the 
Group’s technical team in the construction division, his principal duties are to 
resolve technical and design issues arising from the projects handled by the Group 
as well as to lead and manage the technical professionals within the Group.  Chin Ket reports to 
the General Manager. 

Chin Ket has a Bachelor of Science (Hons) in Civil Engineering from the Strathclyde University, 
Scotland; is a registered Professional Engineer in both Singapore and Malaysia and is a member of 
the Institution of Engineers, Singapore (MIES) and the Institution of Engineers, Malaysia (MIEM).
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Background of Directors & 
Key Management Staff

Corporate Information

IN WAY CHUNG
Senior Manager (Marine Operations) 

Age: 51

Way Chung joined the Group in 2006.  Prior to this, he held senior 
management positions in various shipping companies.  He had spent 
11 years with Welgrow Agencies, a shipping and logistics company, as 

General Manager from 1993 to 2004.  His primary function was business 
development and project management.  After 2004, he had spent another 

two and a half years with Xpress 21, a subsidiary of Sembawang Kimtrans Ltd 
as a Marine Logistics Director overseeing and managing 3 departments of over 70 staff before 
joining Gems Marine.

In his present capacity, he oversees a full range of business functions including, development and 
execution of strategies for business growth; improving revenue and profitability; management of 
operations and support requirements; and strategic evaluation of existing businesses and provide 
recommendations for improvements.

Way Chung is a chartered shipbroker from the Institute of Chartered Shipbrokers in the United 
Kingdom.

OR AH SENG
Manager (Land Based Operations)

Age: 48

Ah Seng joined the Group in 1983 as a site supervisor and was 
subsequently promoted to be the Manager of Entire Engineering in 1990, 
where he was tasked to manage the Group’s land-based machineries and 
equipments. His duties include liaising with project managers, external 
clients and suppliers to ensure that machineries and equipments were being 
supplied on time and in good working condition.

Ah Seng is responsible for the day-to-day operations of Entire Engineering. He has a Certificate in 
Construction Supervision from the Construction Industry Development Board, Singapore.  
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Corporate Governance Statement

The Board of Directors is committed to ensuring good corporate governance practices.

Functions and Responsibilities of the Board

The Board of Directors is responsible for setting the strategic direction of the Group and for overseeing and 
monitoring the Group’s businesses and affairs. The Directors are accountable to the shareholders for the Group’s 
performance. Day-to-day management of the Group’s affairs and the implementation of its strategy are delegated 
to the Executive Directors and senior executives.

The principal functions of the Board include:

•	 Setting	the	corporate	strategy	and	direction	of	the	Group,	including	but	not	limited	to	approval	of	broad	
policies, strategies and financial objectives of the Group.

•	 Monitoring	 the	 implementation	of	 the	 strategy,	 the	business	performance	and	 the	 results	and	ensuring	
appropriate resources are available.

•	 Approving	financial	plans	and	key	management	recommendations.

•	 Appointing	the	Executive	Directors	and	other	key	personnel	and	reviewing	their	performance.

•	 Identifying	and	reviewing	of	risk	and	the	establishment	of	monitoring	and	feedback	systems	with	respect	
to risk management, internal controls, financial reporting and compliance.

•	 Overseeing	the	management	of	occupational	health	&	safety	and	environmental	performance.

Board’s Composition and Balance

The Board comprises six Directors, three of whom are non-executive, independent directors. In view of the scope 
and nature of the operations of the Group, the Board and the Nominating Committee are of the view that there 
is no individual or small group of individuals dominating the Board’s decision-making process and the Board’s 
current size is appropriate for facilitating effective decision-making. 

The Board comprises business leaders and professionals with industry and financial backgrounds. Its composition 
enables the management to benefit from a diverse and objective external perspective on the issues raised before 
the Board.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer / Managing Director

The roles of Chairman and Managing Director, who is the Chief Executive Officer, are separated. The separation 
of roles is to ensure that the working of the Board and the executive responsibility of the Group’s business are 
kept distinct, increasing the accountability and capacity of the Board for independent decision-making. 

The Chairman is responsible for scheduling meetings to enable the Board to discharge its duties. The Chairman, 
with the assistance of the Management, and the Executive Directors shall prepare the agenda and other materials 
for such meeting and that the information shall be of such quality, quantity and speed that enables the Board to 
make informed decisions.  The Executive Directors shall be responsible for ensuring compliance with the Group’s 
guidelines on corporate governance.
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Corporate Governance Statement

Board Membership

The Nominating Committee shall, from time to time, make recommendations on the number and composition 
of the Board of Directors, subject always to the conditions set out in the Company’s Articles and Memorandum 
of Association.  

The Nominating Committee currently comprises three members, all of whom are independent. It is chaired 
by Mr Yao Chee Liew and has as its members, Mr Christopher Chong Meng Tak and Ms Glenda Mary Sorrell-
Saunders. 

The Nominating Committee is responsible for:

•	 Monitoring	the	contribution	and	performance	of	the	Directors	and	the	Board.

•	 Deciding	how	the	Directors	are	enhancing	long-term	shareholder	value.

•	 Re-nominating	and/or	proposing	new	Directors.

At each Annual General Meeting, at least one-third of the Directors will retire from their office by rotation.  The 
General Meeting may re-elect the retiring director or some other person eligible for appointment. 

Board Performance

The Nominating Committee, in considering the re-appointment of a Director, must evaluate the Director’s 
contribution and performance, such as his or her attendance at meetings of the Board or Board Committees, 
and also his or her participation, candour and other contributions.

The Nominating Committee shall assess the Board’s performance taking into consideration quantitative and 
qualitative criteria such as the success of the strategic and long-term objectives set by the Board.

Access to Information

All Directors have separate, independent and unrestricted access to all levels of senior executives in the Group 
and the Company Secretary.  All Directors are continuously updated by management on the developments within 
the Group so that they are equipped to participate fully at Board Meetings. Board papers are prepared for each 
Board and Committee meeting and include information from the management on the financial, business and 
corporate issues to enable the Directors to properly assess the Group’s performance.  Directors may also seek 
independent professional advice at the Group’s expense in order to discharge their duties.

Hence, the Board is of opinion that, under the present arrangement, information provided to the Board is 
sufficient and timely for it to perform its duties effectively.F
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Remuneration

The Compensation Committee comprises three members, all of whom are Independent Directors. The 
Compensation Committee is chaired by Mr Christopher Chong Meng Tak and has as its members, Mr Yao Chee 
Liew and Ms Glenda Mary Sorrell-Saunders.

The Compensation Committee is responsible for:

•	 Recommending	to	the	Board	the	framework	of	remuneration,	including	benefits	in	kind	for	the	Directors,	
senior managers, managers and other key and significant staff.

•	 Reviewing	proposed	annual	pay	adjustments.

•	 Managing	and	recommending	to	the	Board	the	number	of	options,	if	any,	to	be	issued	under	the	ESOS.

The Group’s compensation policy is to provide compensation packages appropriate to attract, retain and motivate 
the Executive Directors and senior executives required to run the Group successfully. The Company has in place 
service contracts for each of its Executive Directors which set out the framework of their remuneration. The 
Compensation Committee will, upon the expiry of such service contracts, recommend to the Board a framework 
for the remuneration of such Executive Directors.

Currently, the Company has in place an ESOS, but no options have been granted under the scheme. The 
remuneration bands of the Directors for the financial year ended 31 December 2008 are:

Remuneration Bands Salary Bonus Fees
Other

benefits Total
% % % % %

Below S$250,000
Yao Chee Liew * – – 100 – 100
Dr. Wang Kai Yuen ** – – 100 – 100
Tan Thiam Hee *** 65 35 – – 100
Oh Koon Sun 76 24 – – 100
Oh Keng Lim 73 19 – 8 100
Christopher Chong Meng Tak – – 100 – 100
Glenda Mary Sorrell-Saunders – – 100 – 100

Note: * Appointed w.e.f. 21 November 2008
 ** Resigned w.e.f. 20 November 2008
 *** Appointed w.e.f. 1 July 2008
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Corporate Governance Statement

Accountability

The Board recognises its responsibility to provide shareholders with a balanced and understandable assessment 
of	 the	Group’s	 performance,	 position	 and	 prospects	 on	 a	 regular	 basis.	 Further,	 the	 Board	 has	 adopted	 the	
practice of communicating major developments in its business and operations to shareholders, the ASX and 
SGX, employees and other stakeholders. 

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises three members, all of whom are Independent Directors. The Audit Committee 
is chaired by Mr Christopher Chong Meng Tak and has as its members Mr. Yao Chee Liew and Ms Glenda Mary 
Sorrell-Saunders.  The Audit Committee shall review and approve the following:

(a) The audit plans of the external auditors.

(b) the reports of the internal auditors’ examination and evaluation of the Group’s systems of internal 
accounting controls.

(c) The Group’s financial and operating results and accounting policies.

(d) The financial statements of the Company and the consolidated financial statements of the Group before 
their submission to the Directors and the external auditors’ report on those financial statements.

(e) The half-yearly and annual announcements as well as the related press release on the results and financial 
position of the Company and the Group.

(f) The co-operation and assistance given by the management to the Group’s external auditors.

(g) The re-appointment of the external auditors of the Group.

The Audit Committee has full access to and co-operation of the management and has been given the resources 
required for it to discharge its functions properly.  It may also invite any Director and Executive Officer to attend 
its meetings.  The external auditors have unrestricted access to the Audit Chairman and the Audit Committee.

Recognising and Managing Risks

The management is responsible for identifying and managing risks. The Board is responsible for satisfying 
itself that a sound system of risk oversight and management exists and that internal controls are effective.  In 
addition to maintaining appropriate insurance and other risk management measures, identified risks are managed 
through:

•	 Established	policies	and	procedures	for	the	management	of	funding	and	financial	instruments.

•	 Standards	and	procedures	in	relation	to	environmental	and	health	and	safety	matters.

•	 Training	programmes	in	relation	to	legal	and	compliance	issues.
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•	 Procedures	requiring	significant	capital	and	revenue	expenditure	and	other	contractual	commitments	are	
approved at an appropriate level or by the Board.

•	 Risk	management	systems	and	policies	that	govern	the	management	of	risk.

The internal audit function as part of its activities monitors the management’s actions to manage risk. The external 
and internal audit functions are separate and independent of each other.

Communication with Shareholders

The Board is mindful of its obligations to provide timely disclosure of material information to shareholders 
and does so through the Annual Report, results announcements, its website at www.koon.com.sg and other 
announcements on developments within the Group or in relation to disclosures required by the stock markets.

The Board regards the Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) as an opportunity to communicate directly with 
shareholders and encourages greater shareholder participation. The Chairman and other Directors attend the 
AGM and are available to answer questions from shareholders at the AGM. The external auditors are also present 
to assist Directors in addressing any relevant queries from shareholders.

Interested Person Transactions

There were no material contracts entered into by the Group involving the interest of the substantial shareholder 
or Director, which are either subsisting at the end of the financial year or, if not then subsisting, entered into 
since the end of the previous financial year.

Directors’ Attendance at Board and Committee Meetings

The following table sets out the Directors’ attendance at Board and Committee meetings held in 2008.

Name No. of meetings attended

Main Board
Audit 

Committee
Nominating 
Committee

Compensation 
Committee

Yao Chee Liew** 1 1 1 1
Tan Thiam Hee*** 2 2* 1* 1*

Oh Koon Sun 3 3* 2* 2*

Oh Keng Lim 3 3* 2* 2*

Christopher Chong Meng Tak 3 3 2 2
Glenda Mary Sorrell-Saunders 3 3 2 2
No. of meetings held 3 3 2 2

Note: * Attended as an invitee to meeting
 ** Appointed w.e.f. 21 November 2008
 *** Appointed w.e.f. 1 July 2008

This table does not include directors who have resigned during the year
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Report of the Directors

The directors present their report together with the audited consolidated financial statements of the Group and 
balance sheet and statement of changes in equity of the Company for the financial year ended December 31, 
2008.

1 DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company in office at the date of this report are:

Yao Chee Liew (Appointed on November 21, 2008)
Tan Thiam Hee (Appointed on July 1, 2008)
Oh Koon Sun
Oh Keng Lim
Christopher Chong Meng Tak
Glenda Mary Sorrell-Saunders

2 ARRANGEMENTS TO ENABLE DIRECTORS TO ACQUIRE BENEFITS BY MEANS OF THE ACQUISITION 
OF SHARES AND DEBENTURES

Neither at the end of the financial year nor at any time during the financial year did there subsist any 
arrangement whose object is to enable the directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the 
acquisition of shares or debentures in the Company or any other body corporate.

3 DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND DEBENTURES

The directors of the Company holding office at the end of the financial year had no interests in the 
share capital and debentures of the Company and related corporations as recorded in the register of 
directors’ shareholdings kept by the Company under Section 164 of the Singapore Companies Act except 
as follows:

Shareholdings registered

in name of director

Shareholdings in which

directors are deemed to

have an interest

Name of directors and 

companies

in which interests are held

At beginning of

year or date of

appointment,

if later

At end

of year

At beginning of

year or date of

appointment,

if later

At end

of year

Koon Holdings Limited

(Ordinary shares)

Oh Keng Lim 4,999,998 5,009,998 – –

Oh Koon Sun 3,528,689 3,528,689 – –

Tan Thiam Hee – 100,000 – –

The directors’ interests in shares and options of the Company at January 21, 2009 were the same at 
December 31, 2008.
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Report of the Directors

4 DIRECTORS’ RECEIPT AND ENTITLEMENT TO CONTRACTUAL BENEFITS

Since the beginning of the financial year, no director has received or become entitled to receive a benefit 
which is required to be disclosed under Section 201(8) of the Singapore Companies Act, by reason of a 
contract made by the Company or a related corporation with the director or with a firm of which he is 
a member, or with a company in which he has a substantial financial interest except as disclosed in the 
financial statements. Certain directors received remuneration from related corporations in their capacity 
as directors and/or executives of those related corporations.

5 SHARE OPTIONS

(a) Options to take up unissued shares

The Employee Share Option Scheme (“ESOS”) in respect of unissued ordinary shares in the Company 
was approved by the shareholders of the Company at an Extraordinary General Meeting held on April 
16, 2003. The summary of the ESOS is described below.

The ESOS is administered by the Compensation Committee whose members are:

Christopher Chong Meng Tak – Chairman
Yao Chee Liew
Glenda Mary Sorrell-Saunders

Participants – (i) Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and employees of the Company 
(“Company employees”) and (ii) Executive Directors and employees of any associated company of a 
company over which the Company has control (“Associated Companies”).

ESOS size – The aggregate number of options on any date will not exceed 15% of the issued shares 
of the Company.

Maximum entitlement – No participants will be granted options in excess of 10% the shares available 
under the ESOS. The total number of options to be granted by the Compensation Committee in any 
one financial year will not exceed 40% of the total number of shares available under the ESOS.

Options, exercise period and exercise price – Options that are granted may be at the market 
price (“Market Price Options”) or at a discount to the market price of a share, provided that the 
shareholders of the Company in general meeting has authorised the making of offers and grant of 
options under the ESOS at a discount. In the event that options are issued at a discount, such options 
may be exercised only after the 2nd anniversary date from the date of the granting of the option 
(“Incentive Options”). Market Price Options will vest over five years from the first anniversary date 
from the date of the grant. Incentive Options will vest over four years after the second anniversary 
date from the date of the grant. All options must be exercised prior to the sixth anniversary of the 
relevant offer date.
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Grant of options – Under the rules of the ESOS, there are no fixed period for grant of options. As 
such, offers of the grant of options may be made at any time and from time to time at the discretion 
of the Compensation Committee. However, no option will be granted during the period of 30 days 
immediately preceding the date of announcement of the Company’s interim or final results (whichever 
the case may be). In addition, in the event that an announcement on any matter of an exceptional 
nature involving unpublished price sensitive information is imminent, offers may only be made after 
the third trading day from the date on which the aforesaid announcement is released.

Termination of options – Special provisions in the rules of the ESOS deal with the lapse or earlier 
exercise of options in circumstances which include the termination of the participant’s employment 
in the Company, or associated company (as the case may be); bankruptcy of the participants, the 
death of the participant; take over of the Company; and the winding up of the Company.

Acceptance of options – Offers of options made to grantee, if not accepted by the grantee within 
30 days from the date of offer, will lapse. Upon acceptance of the offer, the grantee must pay the 
Company a consideration of $1.00.

Rights of shares arising – Shares arising from the exercise of options are subject to the provisions of 
the Constitution of the Company. The shares so allotted will upon issue rank pari passu in all respect 
with the existing issued shares, and will rank in full for all entitlements, including any dividend, or 
other distributions declared or recommended in respect of the then existing shares, the record date 
(“Record Date”) for which falls on or before the relevant exercise date of the option. Record Date 
means the date as at the close of business on which the shareholders must be registered in order to 
participate in any dividend, rights, allotments or other distribution.

Duration of the ESOS – The ESOS will continue in operation for a maximum of 10 years commencing 
on the date on which the ESOS is adopted by the Company in General Meeting, provided always 
that the ESOS may continue beyond the above stipulated period with the approval of shareholders 
by ordinary resolution in General Meeting and of any relevant authorities which may be required.

Since the date of the inception, no options were issued pursuant to the ESOS.

During the financial year, there were no shares of the Company or any corporation in the Group 
issued at a discount to the market price. There were no options granted to controlling shareholders 
and their associate.

No employee or employee of related corporations has received options during the financial year.

(b) During the financial year, there were no shares of the Company or any corporation in the Group 
issued by virtue of the exercise of an option to take up unissued shares.

(c) At the end of the financial year, there were no unissued shares of the Company or any corporations 
in the Group under option.F
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6 AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee of the Company is chaired by Christopher Chong Meng Tak, an independent director, 
and includes Glenda Mary Sorrell-Saunders and Yao Chee Liew, both independent and non-executive 
directors. The Audit Committee has met 2 times since the last Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) and 
has reviewed the following, where relevant, with the executive directors and external auditors of the 
Company:

(a) the audit plans of the external auditors;

(b) the reports of the internal auditors’ examination and evaluation of the Group’s systems of internal 
accounting controls;

(c) the Group’s financial and operating results and accounting policies;

(d) the financial statements of the Company and the consolidated financial statements of the Group 
before their submission to the directors of the Company and the external auditors’ report on those 
financial statements;

(e) the half-yearly and annual announcements as well as the related press release on the results and 
financial position of the Company and the Group;

(f) the co-operation and assistance given by the management to the Group’s external auditors; and

(g) the re-appointment of the external auditors of the Group.

The Audit Committee has full access to and has the co-operation of the management and has been given 
the resources required for it to discharge its functions properly. It also has full discretion to invite any 
director and executive officer to attend its meetings. The external auditors have unrestricted access to the 
Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee has recommended to the directors the nomination of Deloitte & Touche LLP for re-
appointment as external auditors of the Group at the forthcoming AGM of the Company.
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7 AUDITORS

The auditors, Deloitte & Touche LLP, have expressed their willingness to accept re-appointment.

ON	BEHALF	OF	THE	DIRECTORS

Tan Thiam Hee

Oh Koon Sun

March 6, 2009
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Independent Auditors’ Report
To the Members of Koon Holdings Limited

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Koon Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its 
subsidiaries (the “Group”) which comprise the balance sheets of the Group and the Company as at December 
31, 2008, the profit and loss statement, statement of changes in equity and cash flow statement of the Group 
and the statement of changes in equity of the Company for the year then ended, and a summary of significant 
accounting policies and other explanatory notes, as set out on pages 41 to 83.

MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance 
with	 the	provisions	of	 the	Singapore	Companies	Act,	Cap.	50	 (the	“Act”)	 and	Singapore	 Financial	Reporting	
Standards. This responsibility includes: devising and maintaining a system of internal accounting controls sufficient 
to provide a reasonable assurance that assets are safeguarded against loss from unauthorised use or disposition; 
and transactions are properly authorised and that they are recorded as necessary to permit the preparation of 
true and fair profit and loss accounts and balance sheets and to maintain accountability of assets; selecting 
and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the 
circumstances.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our 
audit in accordance with Singapore Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that we comply with ethical 
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements 
are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of 
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk 
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the 
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for 
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes 
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made 
by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. We believe that the 
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion,

(a) the consolidated financial statements of the Group and the balance sheet and statement of changes in 
equity of the Company are properly drawn up in accordance with the provisions of the Act and Singapore 
Financial	Reporting	Standards	so	as	to	give	a	true	and	fair	view	of	the	state	of	affairs	of	the	Group	and	of	
the Company as at December 31, 2008 and of the results, changes in equity and cash flows of the Group 
and changes in equity of the Company for the year ended on that date; and
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Independent Auditors’ Report
To the Members of Koon Holdings Limited

(b) the accounting and other records required by the Act to be kept by the Company and by those subsidiaries 
incorporated in Singapore of which we are the auditors have been properly kept in accordance with the 
provisions of the Act.

DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP
Public Accountants and
Certified Public Accountants
Singapore

Patrick Tan Hak Pheng
Partner
Appointed on June 1, 2008

March 6, 2009
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Balance Sheets
December 31, 2008

Group Company
Note 2008 2007 2008 2007

$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

ASSETS

Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 6 10,004 5,423 4,037 162
Trade receivables 7 31,612 12,854 – –
Other receivables and prepayments 8 1,006 3,445 1,268 4,589
Contract work-in-progress 9 18,913 20,369 – –
Held for trading investments 10 36 90 – –
Available for sale investment 11 500 500 – –

Total current assets 62,071 42,681 5,305 4,751

Non-current assets
Pledged fixed deposits 6 5,505 4,237 – –
Subsidiaries 12 – – 24,093 16,006
Associate 13 * * – –
Property, plant and equipment 14 11,586 10,657 1 6

Total non-current assets 17,091 14,894 24,094 16,012

Total assets 79,162 57,575 29,399 20,763

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Current liabilities
Current portion of long-term bank loans 15 593 593 – –
Trade payables 16 37,775 24,858 – –
Other payables 17 2,528 3,123 8,871 210
Contract work-in-progress 9 7,350 366 – –
Income tax payable 29 29 –
Current portion of finance leases 18 1,524 784 – –

Total current liabilities 49,799 29,753 8,871 210

Non-current liabilities
Long-term bank loans 15 730 1,323 – –
Finance	leases 18 1,553 1,539 – –
Deferred income tax 19 570 421 – –

Total non-current liabilities 2,853 3,283 – –

Capital and reserves
Share capital 20 6,660 6,660 6,660 6,660
Capital reserve 21 13,006 13,006 13,006 13,006
Accumulated profits 6,844 4,873 862 887

Total equity 26,510 24,539 20,528 20,553

Total liabilities and equity 79,162 57,575 29,399 20,763

* Amount less than $1,000.

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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Consolidated Profit and Loss Statement
Year ended December 31, 2008

Note 2008 2007
$’000 $’000

Revenue 22 122,286 142,415

Cost of sales (118,501) (135,056)

Gross profit 3,785 7,359

Other income 23 4,154 5,465

Administrative expenses (5,629) (6,182)

Finance	costs 24 (190) (176)

Profit before income tax 2,120 6,466

Income tax expense 25 (149) (290)

Profit for the year attributable to shareholders 26 1,971 6,176

Earnings per share (cents)

Basic/Diluted 27 2.43 7.62

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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Statements Of Changes In Equity
Year ended December 31, 2008

Share
capital

Capital
reserve

Accumulated
(losses)
profits Total

$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Group

Balance at January 1, 2007 6,660 13,006 (1,303) 18,363

Profit for the year  – – 6,176 6,176

Balance at December 31, 2007 6,660 13,006 4,873 24,539

Profit for the year – – 1,971 1,971

Balance at December 31, 2008 6,660 13,006 6,844 26,510

Company

Balance at January 1, 2007 6,660 13,006 1,241 20,907

Loss for the year – – (354) (354)

Balance at December 31, 2007 6,660 13,006 887 20,553

Loss for the year – – (25) (25)

Balance at December 31, 2008 6,660 13,006 862 20,528

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

F
or

 p
er

so
na

l u
se

 o
nl

y



Koon Holdings Limited  Annual Report 200844

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
Year ended December 31, 2008

2008 2007
$’000 $’000

Operating activities
 Profit before income tax 2,120 6,466
 Adjustments for:
  (Reversal) Allowance for doubtful trade receivables (9) 29
  Allowance for impairment loss in value of other investments – 801
  Depreciation expense 1,235 1,028
  Dividend income from other investment (1,500) (4,003)
  Provision for foreseeable losses on projects 4,847 23
  Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment (1,571) (744)
  Interest income (53) (106)
  Interest expense 190 176
  Charge (Credit) to profit and loss on held for trading investments 54 (36)

 Operating cash flows before movements in working capital 5,313 3,634

  Trade receivables (18,749) (1,080)
  Other receivables and prepayments 310 882
  Contract work-in-progress 3,593 (15,095)
  Trade payables 12,917 9,606
  Other payables (Note B) 905 387

 Cash generated from (used in) operations 4,289 (1,666)

 Income tax refund 2,400 4

Net cash from (used in) operating activities 6,689 (1,662)

Investing activities
 Proceeds on disposal of property, plant and equipment 1,674 1,994
 Purchase of plant and equipment (Note A) (724) (3,851)
 Interest received 53 106
 Dividend received – 4,003

Net cash from investing activities 1,003 2,252

Financing activities
 Repayment of obligations under finance lease (1,060) (2,277)
 Increase in bank loans – 1,916
 Repayment of bank loans (593) (240)
 Interest paid (190) (176)
 Increase in pledged fixed deposits (1,268) (353)
 Advance from investee – 1,500

Net cash (used in) from financing activities (3,111) 370

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 4,581 960
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 5,423 4,463

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year (Note 6) 10,004 5,423
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
Year ended December 31, 2008

NOTE A - PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

During the year, the Group acquired plant and equipment with an aggregate cost of $2,721,000 (2007 : 
$6,385,000) of which $1,814,000 (2007 : $2,534,000) was acquired under finance lease arrangements and 
$183,000 was paid in 2007 as a deposit. Cash payment of $724,000 (2007 : $3,851,000) was made for the 
purchase of plant and equipment.

NOTE B - OTHER PAYABLES

During 2008, the advance from investee (Note 17) amounting to $1,500,000 was offset against the dividend 
declared by the investee company.

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2008

1 GENERAL

The Company (Registration No. 200303284M) is incorporated in Singapore with its registered office and 
principal place of business at 17B Pandan Road, Singapore 609269. The Company is listed on the Australian 
Stock Exchange and on the Catalist (Non-Sponsored) of the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited. 
The financial statements are expressed in Singapore dollars.

The principal activity of the Company is that of investment holding.

The principal activities of the subsidiaries and associate are disclosed in Notes 12 and 13 to the financial 
statements respectively.

The consolidated financial statements of the Group and balance sheet and statement of changes in equity 
of the Company for the financial year ended December 31, 2008 were authorised for issue by the Board 
of Directors on March 6, 2009.

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a)	 BASIS	OF	ACCOUNTING	–	The	financial	statements	are	prepared	in	accordance	with	the	historical	cost	
convention except as disclosed in accounting policies note below and are drawn up in accordance 
with	the	provisions	of	 the	Singapore	Companies	Act	and	Singapore	Financial	Reporting	Standards	
(“FRS”).

ADOPTION	OF	NEW	AND	REVISED	STANDARD	–	In	the	current	financial	year,	the	Group	has	adopted	
all	the	new	and	revised	FRSs	and	Interpretations	of	FRS	(“INT	FRS”)	that	are	relevant	to	its	operations	
and effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2008. The adoption of these new/
revised	FRSs	and	INT	FRSs	does	not	result	in	changes	to	Group’s	and	Company’s	accounting	policies	
and has no material effect on the amounts reported for the current or prior years except as disclosed 
below and in the notes to financial statements.

The	Group	has	adopted	FRS	108	Operating Segments in advance of its effective date, with effect from 
January	1,	2008.	FRS	108	requires	operating	segments	to	be	identified	on	the	basis	of	internal	reports	
about components of the Group that are regularly reviewed by the chief operating decision maker in 
order to allocate resources to the segment and to assess its performance. In contrast, the predecessor 
Standard	(FRS	14	Segment	Reporting)	required	an	entity	to	identify	two	sets	of	segments	(Business	
and Geographical), using a risks and rewards approach, with the entity’s ‘system of internal financial 
reporting to key management personnel’ serving only as the starting point for the identification of 
such	 segments.	As	 a	 result,	 following	 the	 adoption	of	 FRS	108,	 the	 identification	of	 the	Group’s	
reportable segments has changed (Note 28).

At	the	date	of	authorisation	of	these	financial	statements,	the	following	FRSs	relevant	to	the	Group	
and the Company were issued but not effective:

FRS	1 – Presentation	of	Financial	Statements	(Revised)
FRS	23 – Borrowing Costs (Revised)

FRS	1	(Revised)	will	be	effective	for	annual	periods	beginning	on	or	after	January	1,	2009,	and	will	
change the basis for presentation and structure of the financial statements. It does not change the 
recognition, measurement or disclosure of specific transactions and other events required by other 
FRSs.
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Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2008

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

Management	anticipates	that	the	adoption	of	the	other	FRSs	and	the	amendments	to	FRS	that	were	
issued but effective only in future periods will not have a material impact on the financial statements 
of the Group and the Company in the period of their initial adoption.

(b)	 BASIS	 OF	 CONSOLIDATION	 –	 The	 consolidated	 financial	 statements	 incorporate	 the	 financial	
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the Company (its subsidiaries). Control is 
achieved where the Company has the power to govern the financial and operating policies of an 
entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities.

On acquisition, the assets and liabilities of the relevant subsidiaries are measured at their fair values 
at the date of acquisition. The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year are 
included in the consolidated profit and loss statement from the effective date of acquisition or up 
to the effective date of disposal, as appropriate. Where necessary, adjustments are made to the 
financial statements of subsidiaries to bring the accounting policies into line with those used by 
other members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are eliminated on consolidation.

In the Company’s financial statements, investments in subsidiaries and associates are carried at 
cost less any impairment in net recoverable value that has been recognised in the profit and loss 
statement.

(c) BUSINESS COMBINATIONS – The accounting treatment adopted for subsidiaries acquired pursuant to 
the Restructuring Exercise is described in Note 21 to the financial statements. Other than the effect 
of the Restructuring Exercise, the acquisition of subsidiaries is accounted for using the purchase 
method. The cost of the acquisition is measured at the aggregate of the fair values, at the date 
of exchange, of assets given, liabilities incurred or assumed, and equity instruments issued by the 
Group in exchange for control of the acquiree, plus any costs directly attributable to the business 
combination. The acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities that meet the 
conditions	for	recognition	under	FRS	103	Business Combinations are recognised at their fair values 
at the acquisition date, except for non-current assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held 
for	sale	in	accordance	with	FRS	105	Non-Current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations, 
which are recognised and measured at fair value less costs to sell.

Goodwill arising on acquisition is recognised as an asset and initially measured at cost, being the 
excess of the cost of the business combination over the Group’s interest in the net fair value of 
the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities recognised. If, after reassessment, the 
Group’s interest in the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent 
liabilities exceeds the cost of the business combination, the excess is recognised immediately in the 
consolidated profit and loss statement.

(d)	 FINANCIAL	 INSTRUMENTS	–	Financial	assets	and	 financial	 liabilities	are	 recognised	on	 the	Group’s	
balance sheet when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
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Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2008

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial instrument 
and of allocating interest income or expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate 
is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts or payments through the expected 
life of the financial instrument, or where appropriate, a shorter period. Income is recognised on an 
effective interest rate basis for debt instruments other than those financial instruments “at fair value 
through profit or loss”.

Financial assets

Investments are recognised and de-recognised on a trade date where the purchase or sale of an 
investment is under a contract whose terms require delivery of the investment within the time-frame 
established by the market concerned, and are initially measured at fair value, net of transaction costs 
except for those financial assets classified as at fair value through profit or loss which are initially 
measured at fair value.

Other financial assets are classified into the following specified categories: financial assets “at fair 
value through profit or loss”, “held-to-maturity investments”, “available-for-sale” financial assets 
and “trade and other receivables”. The classification depends on the nature and purpose of financial 
assets and is determined at the time of initial recognition.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Certain shares held by the Group are classified as being available for sale and are stated at fair value. 
Fair	value	is	determined	in	the	manner	described	in	Note	4.	Gains	and	losses	arising	from	changes	in	
fair value are recognised directly in the revaluation reserve with the exception of impairment losses, 
interest calculated using the effective interest method and foreign exchange gains and losses on 
monetary assets which are recognised directly in profit and loss statement. Where the investment is 
disposed of or is determined to be impaired, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in the 
revaluation reserve is included in profit and loss statement for the period. Dividends on available-for-
sale equity instruments are recognised in profit or loss when the Group’s right to receive payments 
is established.

Financial	assets	at	fair	value	through	profit	or	loss	(FVTPL)

Financial	assets	are	classified	as	at	FVTPL	where	the	financial	asset	is	either	held	for	trading	or	it	is	
designated	as	at	FVTPL.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

•	 it	has	been	incurred	principally	for	the	purpose	of	selling	in	the	near	future;	or

•	 it	is	a	part	of	an	identified	portfolio	of	financial	instruments	that	the	Group	manages	together	
and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

•	 it	is	a	derivative	that	is	not	designated	and	effective	as	a	hedging	instrument.
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Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2008

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

Financial	assets	at	fair	value	through	profit	or	loss	(FVTPL)	(Cont’d)

A	financial	asset	other	than	a	financial	asset	held	for	trading	may	be	designated	as	at	FVTPL	upon	
initial recognition if:

•	 such	designation	eliminates	or	significantly	reduces	a	measurement	or	recognition	inconsistency	
that would otherwise arise; or

•	 the	 financial	 asset	 forms	 part	 of	 a	 group	 of	 financial	 assets	 or	 financial	 liabilities	 or	 both,	
which is managed and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with 
the Group’s documented risk management or investment strategy, and information about the 
grouping is provided internally on that basis; or

•	 it	forms	part	of	a	contract	containing	one	or	more	embedded	derivatives,	and	FRS	39	Financial 
instruments: Recognition and Measurement permits the entire combined contract (asset or 
liability)	to	be	designated	as	at	FVTPL.

Financial	assets	at	fair	value	through	profit	or	 loss	are	stated	at	fair	value,	with	any	resultant	gain	
or loss recognised in profit and loss statement. The net gain or loss recognised in profit and loss 
statement	incorporates	any	dividend	or	interest	earned	on	the	financial	asset.	Fair	value	is	determined	
in the manner described in Note 4 to the financial statements.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits and are subject to 
insignificant changes in fair value.

Loans and receivables

Trade and other receivables that have fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active 
market are classified as “Loans and receivables”. Loans and receivables are measured at amortised 
cost using the effective interest method less impairment. Interest is recognised by applying the 
effective interest rate method, except for short-term receivables when the recognition of interest 
would be immaterial.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial	 assets,	 other	 than	 those	 at	 fair	 value	 through	 profit	 or	 loss,	 are	 assessed	 for	 indicators	
of	 impairment	 at	 each	 balance	 sheet	 date.	 Financial	 assets	 are	 impaired	where	 there	 is	 objective	
evidence that, as a result of one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the 
financial	asset,	the	estimated	future	cash	flows	of	the	investments	have	been	impacted.	For	financial	
assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the impairment is the difference between the asset’s 
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the original 
effective interest rate.
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Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2008

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the impairment loss directly for all financial 
assets with the exception of trade receivables where the carrying amount is reduced through the 
use of an allowance account. When a trade receivable is uncollectible, it is written off against the 
allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited to the 
profit and loss statement. Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance account are recognised 
in the profit and loss statement.

With the exception of available-for-sale equity instruments, if, in a subsequent period, the amount 
of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring 
after the impairment loss was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed 
through the profit and loss statement to the extent the carrying amount of the investment at the 
date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the 
impairment not been recognised.

In respect of available-for-sale equity instruments, any subsequent increase in fair value after an 
impairment loss, is recognised directly in equity.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the 
asset expire, or it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership 
of the asset to another entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks 
and rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the Group recognises 
its retained interest in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the 
Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, 
the Group continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing 
for the proceeds received.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Classification as debt or equity

Financial	 liabilities	 and	 equity	 instruments	 issued	 by	 the	 Group	 are	 classified	 according	 to	 the	
substance of the contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial liability 
and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity investment is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Group 
after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments are recorded at the proceeds received, net of 
direct issue costs.

Financial	liabilities

Financial	liabilities	are	classified	as	either	financial	liabilities	“at	fair	value	through	profit	or	loss”	or	
other financial liabilities.
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Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2008

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

Financial	liabilities	at	fair	value	through	profit	or	loss	(FVTPL)

Financial	liabilities	are	classified	as	at	FVTPL	where	the	financial	liability	is	either	held	for	trading	or	
it	is	designated	as	at	FVTPL.

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if:

•	 it has been incurred principally for the purpose of repurchasing in the near future; or

•	 it	is	a	part	of	an	identified	portfolio	of	financial	instruments	that	the	Group	manages	together	
and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

•	 it	is	a	derivative	that	is	not	designated	and	effective	as	a	hedging	instrument.

A financial liability	other	 than	a	 financial	 liability	held	 for	 trading	may	be	designated	as	 at	 FVTPL	
upon initial recognition if:

•	 such	designation	eliminates	or	significantly	reduces	a	measurement	or	recognition	inconsistency	
that would otherwise arise; or

•	 the	 financial	 liability	 forms	part	of	a	group	of	 financial	assets	or	 financial	 liabilities	or	both,	
which is managed and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with 
the Group’s documented risk management or investment strategy, and information about the 
grouping is provided internally on that basis; or

•	 it	forms	part	of	a	contract	containing	one	or	more	embedded	derivatives,	and	FRS	39	Financial 
instruments: Recognition and Measurement permits the entire combined contract (asset or 
liability)	to	be	designated	as	at	FVTPL.

Financial	 liabilities	 at	 fair	 value	 through	 profit	 or	 loss	 are	 initially	 measured	 at	 fair	 value	 and	
subsequently stated at fair value, with any resultant gain or loss recognised in profit and loss 
statement. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss incorporates any interest paid on 
the	 financial	 liability.	 Fair	 value	 is	 determined	 in	 the	manner	 described	 in	Note	 4	 to	 the	 financial	
statements.

Other financial liabilities

Trade and other payables are initially measured at fair value, net of transaction costs, and are 
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate method with interest 
expense recognised on an effective yield basis.

Interest-bearing bank loans are initially measured at fair value, and are subsequently measured at 
amortised cost, using the effective interest rate method. Any difference between the proceeds (net 
of transaction costs) and the settlement or redemption of borrowings is recognised over the term of 
the borrowings in accordance with the Group’s accounting policy for borrowing costs (see below).

Financial	guarantee	contract	liabilities	are	measured	initially	at	their	fair	values	and	subsequently	at	the	
higher of the amount recognised as a provision and the amount initially recognised less cumulative 
amortisation in accordance with the revenue recognition policies described below.
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Notes to Financial Statements
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Group’s obligations are 
discharged, cancelled or they expire.

(e) CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTS – Where the outcome of a construction contract can be estimated 
reliably, revenue and costs are recognised by reference to the stage of completion of the contract 
activity at the balance sheet date, as measured by the proportion that contract costs incurred for 
work performed to date bear to the estimated total contract costs, except where this would not be 
representative of the stage of completion. Variations in contract work, claims and incentive payments 
are included to the extent that they have been agreed with the customer.

Where the outcome of a construction contract cannot be estimated reliably, contract revenue is 
recognised to the extent of contract costs incurred that it is probable will be recoverable. Contract 
costs are recognised as expenses in the period in which they are incurred.

When it is probable that total contract costs will exceed total contract revenue, the expected loss is 
recognised as an expense immediately.

(f) LEASES – Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially 
all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating 
leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the 
relevant lease unless another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in which 
use benefit derived from the leased asset is diminished. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and 
arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised 
on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are recognised as assets of the Group at their fair value at the date 
of acquisition. The corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the consolidated balance sheet 
as a finance lease obligation. Lease payments are apportioned between finance charges and reduction 
of the lease obligation so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the 
liability.	Finance	charges	are	charged	directly	to	the	profit	and	loss	statement.

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to the profit and loss statement on a straight-
line basis over the term of the relevant lease unless another systematic basis is more representative 
of the time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed. Contingent 
rentals arising under operating leases are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are 
incurred.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

(g) PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT – Leasehold building for production, rental or administrative 
purposes, are carried at cost, less depreciation and any recognised impairment loss. Cost includes 
professional fees and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised in accordance with the 
Group’s accounting policy. Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as other property assets, 
commences when the assets are ready for their intended use.

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated 
impairment losses.

Depreciation is charged so as to write off the cost of assets, other than land and properties under 
construction, over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method, on the following 
bases:

Leasehold building – 7%
Plant and machinery – 10%
Barges – 6.7%
Tugboats – 6.7%
Dump trucks – 10%
Motor vehicles – 10%
Office equipment, furniture and fittings – 10% to 33%

The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at each year end, 
with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

Fully	depreciated	assets	still	in	use	are	retained	in	the	financial	statements.

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their expected useful lives on the same basis 
as owned assets or, where shorter, the term of the relevant lease.

The gain or loss arising on disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is 
determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amounts of the asset and 
is recognised in the profit and loss statement.

(h) GOODWILL – Goodwill arising on the acquisition of a subsidiary represents the excess of the cost 
of acquisition over the Group’s interest in the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and 
contingent liabilities of the subsidiary recognised at the date of acquisition. Goodwill is initially 
recognised as an asset at cost and is subsequently measured at cost less any accumulated impairment 
losses.

For	the	purpose	of	impairment	testing,	goodwill	is	allocated	to	each	of	the	Group’s	cash-generating	
units expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination. Cash-generating units to which 
goodwill has been allocated are tested for impairment annually, or more frequently when there is an 
indication that the unit may be impaired. If the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is 
less than the carrying amount of the unit, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying 
amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to the other assets of the unit pro-rata on the 
basis of the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill 
is not reversed in a subsequent period.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

On disposal of a subsidiary, the attributable amount of goodwill is included in the determination of 
the profit or loss on disposal.

The Group’s policy for goodwill arising on the acquisition of an associate is described under 
‘Associates’ below.

(i)	 IMPAIRMENT	OF	 TANGIBLE	AND	 INTANGIBLE	ASSETS	OTHER	 THAN	GOODWILL-	 At	 each	 balance	
sheet date, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its assets to determine whether there is 
any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the 
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment 
loss (if any). Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the 
Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value 
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount 
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to 
the asset.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying 
amount, the carrying amount of the asset (cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. 
An impairment loss is recognised immediately in the profit and loss statement.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (cash-generating 
unit) is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying 
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment 
loss been recognised for the asset (cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment 
loss is recognised immediately in the profit and loss statement.

(j) ASSOCIATES – An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence and that is 
neither a subsidiary nor an interest in a joint venture. Significant influence is the power to participate 
in the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but is not control or joint control over 
those policies. The results and assets and liabilities of associates are incorporated in these financial 
statements using the equity method of accounting.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are incorporated in these financial statements using 
the equity method of accounting. Under the equity method, investments in associates are carried in 
the consolidated balance sheet at cost as adjusted for post-acquisition changes in the Group’s share 
of the net assets of the associate, less any impairment in the value of individual investments. Losses of 
an associate in excess of the Group’s interest in that associate (which includes any long-term interests 
that, in substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in the associate) are not recognised.

Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable 
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of the associate recognised at the date of acquisition is 
recognised as goodwill. The goodwill is included within the carrying amount of the investment and 
is assessed for impairment as part of the investment. Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair 
value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over the cost of acquisition, after 
reassessment, is recognised immediately in the consolidated profit and loss statement.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

Where a group entity transacts with an associate of the Group, profits and losses are eliminated to 
the extent of the Group’s interest in the relevant associate.

(k) PROVISIONS – Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or 
constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that the Group will be required to settle the 
obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle 
the present obligation at the balance sheet date, taking into account the risks and uncertainties 
surrounding the obligation. Where a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle 
the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows.

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered 
from a third party, the receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement 
will be received and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

(l) REVENUE RECOGNITION – Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received 
or receivable. Revenue is reduced for estimated customer returns, rebates and other similar 
allowances.

Long-term construction contracts

Revenue and profits from long-term construction contracts are recognised based on the percentage 
of completion as at the balance sheet date by reference to the proportion of cost incurred to date 
in relation to the estimated total costs for the respective contracts, provided that the work is at least 
20% completed and the outcome can be reliably estimated.

Provision is made in full for estimated losses on uncompleted contracts in the year in which such 
losses are anticipated, regardless of the stage of completion of the contracts.

Supply of services and personnel

Supply of services and personnel is recognised when services are rendered.

Supply of machinery and equipment

Supply of machinery and equipment is recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Charter income

Charter income is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the charter agreement.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

Interest income

Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the 
effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts 
through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount.

Rental income

Rental income is recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’ right to receive the payment have been 
established.

(m) BORROWING COSTS – Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or 
production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time 
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time 
as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income earned on 
the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is 
deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in the profit and loss statement in the period in which they 
are incurred.

(n)	 RETIREMENT	BENEFIT	COSTS	–	Payments	to	defined	contribution	retirement	benefit	plans	are	charged	
as an expense as they fall due. Payments made to state-managed retirement benefit schemes, such as 
the	Singapore	Central	Provident	Fund,	are	dealt	with	as	payments	to	defined	contribution	plans	where	
the Group’s obligations under the plans are equivalent to those arising in a defined contribution 
retirement benefit plan.

(o) EMPLOYEE LEAVE ENTITLEMENT – Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised when they 
accrue to employees. A provision is made for the estimated liability for annual leave as a result of 
services rendered by employees up to the balance sheet date.

(p) INCOME TAX – Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred 
tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from profit 
as reported in the profit and loss statement because it excludes items of income or expense that 
are taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes items that are not taxable or tax 
deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates (and tax laws) that have 
been enacted or substantively enacted in countries where the Company and subsidiaries operate by 
the balance sheet date.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in 
the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit, 
and is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method. Deferred tax liabilities are generally 
recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent 
that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which deductible temporary differences 
can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from 
goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of other assets and 
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences arising on investments in 
subsidiaries and associates, and interests in joint ventures, except where the Group is able to control 
the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will not 
reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to 
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or 
part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates (and tax laws) that are expected to apply in the period 
when the liability is settled or the asset realised based on the tax rates (and tax laws) that have been 
enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date. Deferred tax is charged or credited to 
profit and loss statement, except when it relates to items charged or credited directly to equity, in 
which case the deferred tax is also dealt with in equity.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off 
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the 
same taxation authority and the Group intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net 
basis.

Current and deferred tax are recognised as an expense or income in profit and loss statement, 
except when they relate to items credited or debited directly to equity, in which case the tax is 
also recognised directly in equity, or where they arise from the initial accounting for a business 
combination. In the case of a business combination, the tax effect is taken into account in calculating 
goodwill or determining the excess of the acquirer’s interest in the net fair value of the acquiree’s 
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over cost.

(q)	 FOREIGN	CURRENCY	TRANSACTIONS	AND	TRANSLATION	–	The	 individual	 financial	 statements	of	
each Group entity are measured and presented in the currency of the primary economic environment 
in which the entity operates (its functional currency). The consolidated financial statements of the 
Group and the balance sheet of the Group are presented in Singapore dollars, which is the functional 
currency of the Company, and the presentation currency for the consolidated financial statements.

In preparing the financial statements of the individual entities, transactions in currencies other than 
the entity’s functional currency are recorded at the rates of exchange prevailing on the date of the 
transaction. At each balance sheet date, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are 
retranslated at the rates prevailing on the balance sheet date. Non-monetary items carried at fair 
value that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date 
when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical 
cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, and on retranslation of monetary 
items are included in the profit and loss statement for the period. Exchange differences arising on 
the retranslation of non-monetary items carried at fair value are included in profit and loss statement 
for the period except for differences arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items in respect of 
which	gains	and	losses	are	recognised	directly	in	equity.	For	such	non-monetary	items,	any	exchange	
component of that gain or loss is also recognised directly in equity.

3 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

(i) Critical judgements in applying the Group’s accounting policies

In the application of applying the Group’s accounting policies which are described in Note 2 above, 
management is required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts 
of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated 
assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. 
Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting 
estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only 
that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current 
and future periods.

Management is of the opinion that any instances of application of judgements are not expected to 
have a significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements.

(ii) Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the 
balance sheet date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying 
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are discussed below:

(a) Revenue from contract work-in-progress

As described in Note 2 to the financial statements, revenue and costs associated with a project 
are recognised as revenue and expenses respectively by reference to the stage of completion of 
a project activity at the balance sheet date, using engineers’ estimates. When it is probable that 
the total project costs will exceed the total project revenue, the expected loss is recognised as 
an expense immediately. These computations are based on the presumption that the outcome 
of a project can be estimated reliably.

Management has performed cost studies, taking into account the costs to date and costs 
to complete each project, foreseeable losses and applicable liquidated damages, if any. 
Management has also reviewed the status of such projects and is satisfied that the estimates 
to complete are realistic, and the estimates of total project costs and sales proceeds indicate 
full project recovery.
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3 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY 
(Cont’d)

(ii) Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Cont’d)

(b) Impairment in and fair value of available for sale investment

Management has determined that the fair value of the Group’s available for sale investment 
cannot be reliably measured and accordingly, the investment is stated at cost, less impairment, 
if any.

Determining whether the available for sale unquoted equity investment amounting to $500,000 
is impaired requires an estimation of the value in use of the investment. The value in use 
calculation requires the Group to estimate the future cash flows expected and an appropriate 
discount rate in order to calculate the present value of the future cash-flows. Management 
has evaluated the recoverability of the investment based on such estimates and is confident 
that the allowance for impairment, where necessary, is adequate.

(c) Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

As described in Note 2(g), the Group reassesses the estimated useful lives of property, plant 
and equipment at the end of each annual reporting period.

The carrying amount of property, plant and equipment is disclosed in Note 14 to the financial 
statements.

4 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS, FINANCIAL RISKS AND CAPITAL RISKS MANAGEMENT

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks, including the effects of: changes in debt and 
equity market prices, foreign currency exchange rates and interest rates. The Group does not use derivative 
financial instruments such as foreign exchange forward contracts to hedge certain exposures. The Group 
does not hold or issue derivative financial instruments for speculative purposes.
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4 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS, FINANCIAL RISKS AND CAPITAL RISKS MANAGEMENT (Cont’d)

(a) Categories of financial instruments

The following table sets out the financial instruments as at the balance sheet date:

Group Company
2008 2007 2008 2007

$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Financial assets

Fair	value	through	profit	or	loss	(FVTPL):
 Held for trading 36 90 – –
Loans and receivables (including cash
 and cash equivalents) 48,021 23,299 5,283 4,731
Available-for-sale 500 500 – –

48,557 23,889 5,283 4,731

Financial liabilities

Borrowings and payables at amortised
 cost 44,703 32,220 8,871 210

(b) Financial risk management policies and objectives

The Group has documented financial risk management policies. These policies set out the Group’s 
overall business strategies and its risk management philosophy. The Group’s overall financial risk 
management programme seeks to minimise potential adverse effects of financial performance of the 
Group. The Board of Directors provide written principles for overall financial risk management and 
written policies covering specific areas, such as market risk (including foreign exchange risk, interest 
rate risk, equity price risk), credit risk, liquidity risk, cash flow interest rate risk, use of derivative 
financial instruments and investing excess cash.

Such written policies are reviewed annually by the Board of Directors and periodic reviews are 
undertaken to ensure that the Group’s policy guidelines are complied with. Risk management is 
carried out by the management under the policies approved by the Board of Directors.

There has been no change to the Group’s exposure to these financial risks or the manner in which 
it manages and measures the risk. Market risk exposures are measured using sensitivity analysis 
indicated below.

(i) Foreign	exchange	risk	management

The Group’s activities are mainly conducted in Singapore dollars. Hence, the Group’s exposure 
to foreign exchange risk is minimal.
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4 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS, FINANCIAL RISKS AND CAPITAL RISKS MANAGEMENT (Cont’d)

(b) Financial risk management policies and objectives (Cont’d)

(ii) Interest rate risk management

Interest bearing financial assets are mainly bank balances and fixed deposit which are short-term 
in nature. The interest rates for finance leases are fixed on the date of inception. Any variation 
in the short-term interest rates will not have a material impact on the results of the Group.

The Group is exposed to interest rate risk on its bank loans, which varies accordingly to prime 
lending rate. The management are of the view that any variation of the prime lending rate is 
not likely to have a material impact on the results of the Group. Accordingly, the Group does 
not hedge against interest rate risk relating to its bank loans.

(iii) Equity price risk management

The Group is exposed to equity risks arising from equity investments classified as held-for-
trading and available-for-sale. Available-for-sale equity investments are held for strategic rather 
than trading purposes. The Group does not actively trade available for sale investments.

Further	details	of	these	equity	investments	can	be	found	in	Notes	10	and	11	to	the	financial	
statements.

Equity price sensitivity

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on the exposure to equity price 
risks at the reporting date.

The available-for-sale equity investments are unquoted and sensitivity details have not been 
presented due to non-availability of a reliable valuation model.

In respect of held-for-trading equity investments, management is of the view that any variation 
of the equity prices will not have a significant impact on the results of the Group.

(iv) Credit risk management

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on its contractual obligations 
resulting in financial loss to the Group. The Group has adopted a policy of only dealing with 
creditworthy counterparties and obtaining sufficient collateral where appropriate, as a means 
of mitigating the risk of financial loss from defaults. The Group’s exposure and the credit 
ratings of its counterparties are continuously monitored and the aggregate value of transactions 
concluded is spread amongst approved counterparties. Credit exposure is controlled by the 
counterparty limits that are reviewed and approved by management annually.

Concentration of credit risk exists when economic, industry or geographical factors similarly 
affect Group counter parties whose aggregate credit exposure is significant in relation to the 
Group’s total credit exposure.
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4 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS, FINANCIAL RISKS AND CAPITAL RISKS MANAGEMENT (Cont’d)

(b) Financial risk management policies and objectives (Cont’d)

(iv) Credit risk management (Cont’d)

The Group has significant concentration of credit risk in that its top 5 debtors accounted for 
$27,622,000 (2007: $9,825,000) or 88% (2007: 76%) of the gross trade receivables balance 
at year end.

The carrying amount of financial assets recorded in the financial statements, grossed up for 
any allowances for losses, represents the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk without 
taking account of the value of any collateral obtained.

Further	details	of	credit	risks	on	trade	and	other	receivables	are	disclosed	in	Notes	7	and	8	to	
the financial statements respectively.

(v) Liquidity risk management

The Group maintains sufficient cash and cash equivalents, and internally generated cash 
flows to finance their activities. Management finances the Group’s liquidity through internally 
generated cash flows and minimises liquidity risk by keeping committed credit lines available. 
Management expects that the Company does not have undue liquidity risk as it expects that 
the amount payable to subsidiaries will be set-off against future dividend payments.

Liquidity and interest risk analyses

Non-derivative financial liabilities

The following tables detail the remaining contractual maturity for non-derivative financial 
liabilities. The tables have been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial 
liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Group and Company can be required to pay. 
The table includes both interest and principal cash flows. The adjustment column represents 
the possible future cash flows attributable to the instrument included in the maturity analysis 
which is not included in the carrying amount of the financial liability on the balance sheet.

F
or

 p
er

so
na

l u
se

 o
nl

y



Koon Holdings Limited  Annual Report 2008 63

Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2008

4 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS, FINANCIAL RISKS AND CAPITAL RISKS MANAGEMENT (Cont’d)

(b) Financial risk management policies and objectives (Cont’d)

(v) Liquidity risk management (Cont’d)

Weighted

average

effective

interest

rate

On

demand

or within

1 year

Within

2 to

5 years

After

5 years Adjustment Total

% $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Group

2008

Non-interest bearing – 40,303 – – – 40,303

Finance	lease	liability

 (fixed rate) 2.64 1,631 1,616 – (170) 3,077

Variable interest rate

 instruments 2.35 607 768 – (52) 1,323

42,541 2,384 – (222) 44,703

2007

Non-interest bearing – 27,981 – – – 27,981

Finance	lease	liability

 (fixed rate) 2.97 887 1,680 – (244) 2,323

Variable interest

 rate instruments 3.74 663 1,405 – (152) 1,916

29,531 3,085 – (396) 32,220

Company

2008

Non-interest bearing – 8,871 – – – 8,871

2007

Non-interest bearing – 210 – – – 210
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4 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS, FINANCIAL RISKS AND CAPITAL RISKS MANAGEMENT (Cont’d)

(b) Financial risk management policies and objectives (Cont’d)

(v) Liquidity risk management (Cont’d)

Weighted

average

effective

interest

rate

On

demand

or within

1 year

Within

2 to

5 years

After

5 years Adjustment Total

% $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Non-derivative financial assets

Group

2008

Non-interest bearing – 39,048 – – – 39,048

Fixed	deposits

 (variable rate) 1.0 9,604 – – (95) 9,509

48,652 – – (95) 48,557

2007

Non-interest bearing – 19,652 – – – 19,652

Fixed	deposits

 (variable rate) 1.98 4,321 – – (84) 4,237

23,973 – – (84) 23,889

Company

2008

Non-interest bearing – 2,279 – – – 2,279

Fixed	deposits

 (variable rate) 1.0 3,034 – – (30) 3,004

5,313 – – (30) 5,283

2007

Non-interest bearing – 4,731 – – – 4,731
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4 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS, FINANCIAL RISKS AND CAPITAL RISKS MANAGEMENT (Cont’d)

(b) Financial risk management policies and objectives (Cont’d)

(vi) Fair	value	of	financial	assets	and	financial	liabilities

The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents, trade and other current receivables and 
payables, provisions and other liabilities approximate their respective fair values due to the 
relatively short-term maturity of these financial instruments. The fair values of other classes of 
financial assets and liabilities are disclosed in the respective notes to financial statements.

The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities are determined as follows:

•	 the	fair	value	of	financial	assets	and	financial	liabilities	with	standard	terms	and	conditions	
and traded on active liquid markets are determined with reference to quoted market 
prices; and

•	 the	 fair	 value	 of	 other	 financial	 assets	 and	 financial	 liabilities	 (excluding	 derivative	
instruments) are determined in accordance with generally accepted pricing models based 
on discounted cash flow analysis.

Management considers that the carrying amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities 
recorded at amortised cost in the financial statements approximate their fair values.

(c) Capital risk management policies and objectives

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will be able to continue as a 
going concern while maximising the return to stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt 
and equity balance.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, which includes the borrowings disclosed in Notes 
15 and 18 to the financial statements, cash and cash equivalents as disclosed in Note 6 and equity 
attributable to equity holders of the Company, comprising share capital and reserves as disclosed in 
Notes 20 and 21 to the financial statements and retained earnings.

5 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Related parties are entities with common direct or indirect shareholders and/or directors. Parties are 
considered to be related if one party has the ability to control the other party or exercise significant 
influence over the other party in making financial and operating decisions.

Some of the Group’s transactions and arrangements are with related parties and the effect of these on 
the basis determined between the parties are reflected in these financial statements. The balances are 
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.
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5 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Cont’d)

Significant related party transactions:

Group
2008 2007

$’000 $’000

Revenue (939) –
Rental income (202) –
Subcontract costs 1,968 –

Compensation of directors (key management personnel)

a) Number of directors of the Group in remuneration bands:

2008
Executive Non-executive Total

$250,000 to $499,999 – – –
Below $250,000 3 3 6
Total 3 3 6

2007
Executive Non-executive Total

$250,000 to $499,999 1 – 1
Below $250,000 3 3 6
Total 4 3 7

b) The remuneration of directors and other members of key management during the year were as 
follows:

Group
2008 2007

$’000 $’000

Short-term benefits 874 1,093
Post-employment benefits 18 22

892 1,115

The remuneration of directors and key management is determined by the remuneration committee 
having regard to the performance of individuals and market trends.F
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6 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Group Company
2008 2007 2008 2007

$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Cash at bank and on hand 6,000 5,423 1,033 162
Fixed	deposits 9,509 4,237 3,004 –

15,509 9,660 4,037 162

Less: Pledged fixed deposits shown as
   non-current asset (5,505) (4,237) – –

Cash and cash equivalents 10,004 5,423 4,037 162

(a) Cash and bank balances comprise cash held by the Group and short-term bank deposits with an 
original maturity of three months or less. The carrying amounts of these assets approximate their 
fair values.

(b) The Group has certain fixed deposits amounting to $5,505,000 (2007 : $4,237,000) pledged to banks 
for bank loans facilities granted [Notes 15 and 29(c)]. The pledged fixed deposits have a tenure of 
approximately 90 to 180 days (2007 : 90 to 180 days) and bear interest at an average of 0.3% to 
1.4% (2007 : 1.30% to 1.88%) per annum. The pledged fixed deposits have been shown as non-
current as these are not expected to be realised in the next twelve months.

Other fixed deposits bear interest at an average rate from 0.3% to 1.4% (2007 : 1.30% to 1.88%) per 
annum and for a tenure of approximately 7 to 30 days. (2007 : Nil).

7 TRADE RECEIVABLES

Group
2008 2007

$’000 $’000

Outside parties 31,571 12,884
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts (39) (625)

Net 31,532 12,259
Retention monies receivable (Note 9) – 526
Related parties (Note 5) 80 –
Retention sum for development properties – 69

31,612 12,854

Movements in allowance for doubtful debts

Balance at beginning of the year 625 650
Amounts written off against receivables (577) (54)
(Credit) Charge to profit and loss (9) 29

Balance at end of the year 39 625
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7 TRADE RECEIVABLES (Cont’d)

The average credit period on sales is 30 days (2007 : 30 days). No interest is charged on trade 
receivables.

An allowance as at balance sheet date, has been made for the estimated irrecoverable amount from the 
rendering of services to third parties of $39,000 (2007 : $625,000). This allowance has been determined 
by reference to past default experience.

Included in the Group’s trade receivable balance are debtors with a carrying amount of $11,809,000 (2007 
: $2,361,000) which are past due at the reporting date for which the Group has not provided for any 
impairment allowance. These overdue balances include $10,951,000 (2007 : $243,000), which arise out of 
back-to-back contract arrangements under which the Group does not retain any credit risk. Management 
expects that as there has not been a significant change in the credit quality and the amounts are still 
considered recoverable, no impairment allowance is necessary. The Group does not hold any collateral 
over these balances.

The table below is an analysis of debts which are past due but not impaired:

2008 2007
$’000 $’000

3 months to 6 months 10,960,000 1,554,000
6 months to 12 months 849,000 281,000
More than 12 months – 526,000

11,809,000 2,361,000

In determining the recoverability of a trade receivable the Group considers any change in the credit quality 
of the trade receivable from the date credit was initially granted up to the reporting date. Accordingly, 
management believes that there is no further credit provision required in excess of the allowance for the 
doubtful debts.

Included in the allowance for doubtful debts are specific trade receivables with a balance of $Nil
(2007 : $304,000) which have been placed under liquidation. The impairment recognised represents the 
difference between the carrying amount of the specific trade receivable and present value of expected 
liquidation proceeds. The Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.

The Group’s trade receivables that are not denominated in the functional currencies of the respective 
entities are as follows:

Group
2008 2007

$’000 $’000

United States dollars – 12
Indonesian rupiah – 6
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8 OTHER RECEIVABLES AND PREPAYMENTS

Group Company
2008 2007 2008 2007

$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Receivable for sale of plant and equipment 700 246 – –
Prepayments 105 259 22 20
Deposits for plant and equipment – 183 – –
Advances to suppliers – 100 – –
Deposits 181 181 – –
Other receivables 19 75 19 74
Income tax recoverable 1 2,401 – –
Subsidiaries (Note 12) – – 1,227 4,495

1,006 3,445 1,268 4,589

The amount due from the subsidiaries is unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand. The Company 
has not made any provision as management is of the view that these receivables are collectible.

The Group’s and Company’s other receivables are denominated in the functional currencies of the respective 
entities.

9 CONTRACT WORK-IN-PROGRESS

Group
2008 2007

$’000 $’000

Costs and recognised profit of uncompleted contracts in
 excess of related billings (included in current assets):

Accumulated costs 218,634 335,151
Recognised profit 2,256 5,416
Anticipated loss – (514)
Accumulated billings (201,977) (319,684)

Net 18,913 20,369

Billings in excess of costs and recognised profit on uncompleted
 contracts (included in current liabilities):

Accumulated billings 102,217 20,061
Recognised profit (3,516) (1,322)
Anticipated loss 4,847 –
Accumulated costs (96,198) (18,373)

Net 7,350 366

Movement of provision for specific anticipated loss (WIP):

Balance at beginning of year 514 751
Provision recognised – cost and recognised profit of uncompleted
 contracts in excess of related billing in current year 4,847 23
Amount reversed out for completed project (42) (6)
Amount realised (472) (254)

Balance at end of year 4,847 514

As at December 31, 2008, retentions held by customers for construction contracts amounted to $Nil (2007 
: $526,000), and are included in trade receivables (Note 7). The contract work-in-progress is classified as 
current because they are expected to be realised in the normal operating cycle.
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10 HELD FOR TRADING INVESTMENTS

Group
2008 2007

$’000 $’000

Quoted equity shares:
 At cost 116 116
 Cumulative fair value adjustments (80) (26)

 At fair value 36 90

Movement in cumulative fair value adjustment:

Balance at beginning of year 26 644
Fair	value	adjustment:
 Write off of amount receivable from promoter – (382)
 Utilised – (200)
 Charge (Credit) to profit and loss statement 54 (36)

Balance at end of year 80 26

In 2007, quoted equity shares with a net book value of $801,000 was written off due to liquidation of 
the investee.

The investments above include investments in quoted equity securities that offer the Group the opportunity 
for return through dividend income and fair value gains. They have no fixed maturity or coupon rate. The 
fair value of these securities are based on the quoted closing market prices on the last market day of the 
financial year.

11 AVAILABLE FOR SALE INVESTMENT

Group
2008 2007

$’000 $’000

Unquoted equity shares, at cost 500 500

The investments in unquoted equity investments represent an investment in a Company that is engaged in 
construction projects. The Group and other shareholder of the investee have determined that the Group 
does not have significant influence on the investee.

F
or

 p
er

so
na

l u
se

 o
nl

y



Koon Holdings Limited  Annual Report 2008 71

Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2008

12 SUBSIDIARIES

Company
2008 2007

$’000 $’000

Unquoted equity shares, at cost 24,093 16,006

Details of the Company’s subsidiaries are as follows:

Name of 
subsidiaries

Principal activity
(Country of
incorporation/operation)

Cost of
investments

Proportion
of ownership

interest/voting
power held

2008 2007 2008 2007
$’000 $’000 % %

Koon Construction
& Transport
Co. Pte Ltd

Contractors for civil and
drainage engineering,
building, shore protection
and, marine and foundation
works (Singapore)

16,006 16,006 100 100

Entire Engineering
Pte Ltd *

Civil and drainage
engineering contractors
and rental of machinery
and equipment
(Singapore)

1,044 – 100 100

Gems Marine Pte
Ltd *

Provision of tugboats
and barges services
(Singapore)

6,693 – 100 100

Entire Construction
Pte Ltd

Contractors for civil and
engineering works
(Singapore)

350 – 100 –

24,093 16,006

* Effective December 31, 2008, the Company acquired the entire equity interests in Entire Engineering 
Pte Ltd and Gems Marine Pte Ltd from Koon Construction & Transport Co Pte Ltd, its wholly-owned 
subsidiary.

Other than Entire Construction Pte Ltd, which was incorporated during the year and is dormant, the above 
subsidiaries are audited by Deloitte & Touche LLP, Singapore.
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December 31, 2008

13 ASSOCIATE

Group
2008 2007

$’000 $’000

Unquoted equity shares, at cost * *

* Less than $1,000.

This represents the Group’s 50% equity interest in Mesco Sdn Bhd, incorporated in Brunei. The associate 
is dormant.

14 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Capital

work-in

progress

Leasehold

building

Plant and

machinery Barges Tugboats

Dump

trucks

Motor

vehicles

Office

equipment,

furniture

and

fittings Total

$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Group

Cost:

 At January 1,

  2007 – 5,016 6,466 4,199 2,182 1,029 2,397 589 21,878

 Additions – – 2,424 3,035 771 – 114 41 6,385

 Disposals – – (3,310) (487) – – (96) (34) (3,927)

 At December 31,

  2007 – 5,016 5,580 6,747 2,953 1,029 2,415 596 24,336

 Additions 322 – 1,807 366 – – 162 64 2,721

 Disposals – – (162) (1,610) – – (609) (8) (2,389)

 At December 31,

  2008 322 5,016 7,225 5,503 2,953 1,029 1,968 652 24,668

Accumulated

 depreciation:

 At January 1,

  2007 – 2,860 4,699 3,437 1,428 491 1,714 453 15,082

 Depreciation – 239 212 269 58 71 90 89 1,028

 Disposals – – (1,821) (487) – – (90) (33) (2,431)

 At December 31,

  2007 – 3,099 3,090 3,219 1,486 562 1,714 509 13,679

 Depreciation – 239 380 286 109 71 103 47 1,235

 Disposals – – (160) (1,127) – – (539) (6) (1,832)

 At December 31,

  2008 – 3,338 3,310 2,378 1,595 633 1,278 550 13,082

Carrying amount:

 At December 31,

  2008 322 1,678 3,915 3,125 1,358 396 690 102 11,586

 At December 31, 

  2007 – 1,917 2,490 3,528 1,467 467 701 87 10,657
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14 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Cont’d)

(a) Property, plant and equipment with carrying amount of $6,940,000 (2007 : $5,691,000) are pledged 
under finance lease agreements and bank loans.

(b) The leasehold building is mortgaged to a bank for bank loans granted to a subsidiary (Note 15). The 
leasehold building is located at 17B Pandan Road, Singapore 609269.

Office
equipment,

furniture
and fittings

$’000

Company

Cost:
 At January 1, 2007 96
 Additions 2

 At December 31, 2007 and December 31, 2008 98

Accumulated depreciation:
 At January 1, 2007 72
 Depreciation 20

 At December 31, 2007 92
 Depreciation 5

 At December 31, 2008 97

Carrying amount:
 At December 31, 2008 1

 At December 31, 2007 6
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15 LONG-TERM BANK LOANS

Group
2008 2007

$’000 $’000

Long-term bank loans 1,323 1,916
Less: Current portion (593) (593)

Non current portion 730 1,323

The borrowings are repayable as follows:

On demand or within one year 593 593
In second to fifth years 730 1,323

1,323 1,916

The Group has two principal bank loans:

(a) Loan A bears effective interest rate of 2.28% (2007 : 3.91%) per annum and is repayable in 47 equal 
instalments commencing April 2007. The loan is secured by a charge over a subsidiary’s barges with 
a carrying amount of $2,048,000 (2007 : $2,205,000). The loan carries at 1.2% plus one month 
SIBOR rate per annum.

(b) Loan B bears effective interest rate of 2.41% (2007 : 3.09%) per annum and repayable in 35 equal 
instalments commencing December 2007. The loan is secured by a charge over a subsidiary’s tugboats 
with a carrying amount of $566,000 (2007 : $613,000) and fixed deposits (Notes 6 and 14). The 
loan carries at 1.5% plus one month SIBOR rate per annum.

16 TRADE PAYABLES

The average credit period on purchases is 60 days (2007: 60 days). No interest is payable on overdue 
balances.

The Group’s trade payables are denominated in the functional currencies of the respective entities.

F
or

 p
er

so
na

l u
se

 o
nl

y



Koon Holdings Limited  Annual Report 2008 75

Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2008

17 OTHER PAYABLES

Group Company
2008 2007 2008 2007

$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Accrued expenses 2,528 1,623 328 184

Advance from investee company – 1,500 – –

Subsidiaries (Note 12) – – 8,543 26

2,528 3,123 8,871 210

The advance from investee received in 2007 has been set-off against the dividend declared by the investee 
company during the year.

The Group’s other payables are denominated in the functional currency of the respective entities.

18 FINANCE LEASES

Minimum
lease payments

Present value
of minimum

lease payments
2008 2007 2008 2007

$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Group

Amounts payable under finance leases:

Within one year 1,631 887 1,524 784

In the second to fifth years inclusive 1,616 1,680 1,553 1,539

3,247 2,567 3,077 2,323

Less:	Future	finance	charges (170) (244)

Present value of lease obligations 3,077 2,323

Less: Amount due for settlement
   within 12 months (1,524) (784)

Amount due for settlement after 12 months 1,553 1,539

It is the Group’s policy to lease certain of its plant and equipment under finance leases. The average lease 
term	is	3	years.	For	the	year	ended	December	31,	2008,	the	effective	borrowing	rate	ranged	between	2.5%	
and 5.8% (2007 : 2.5% and 7%) per annum. Interest rates are fixed at contract date, and thus expose 
the Group to fair value interest rate risk. All leases are on a fixed repayment basis and no arrangement 
has been entered into for contingent rental payments.

All lease obligations are denominated in Singapore dollars.

The fair value of the Group’s lease obligations approximates their carrying amount.

The Group’s obligations under finance leases are secured by the lessors’ title to the leased assets.
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19 DEFERRED INCOME TAX

Group
2008 2007

$’000 $’000

At beginning of year 421 131
Underprovision in prior year – 27
Effect of change in tax rate – (15)
Charge for the year 149 278

At end of year 570 421

The deferred tax liability arose from the excess of capital allowances claimed over depreciation charged on 
those assets which qualify for tax allowance.

20 SHARE CAPITAL

Group and Company
2008 2007 2008 2007

Number of ordinary shares $’000 $’000

Issued and paid up:

 At beginning and end of year 81,000,000 81,000,000 6,660 6,660

The Company has one class of ordinary shares which carry no right to fixed income and has no par 
value.

21 CAPITAL RESERVE

(a) On April 10, 2003, pursuant to a Restructuring Exercise, the then existing shareholders of Koon 
Construction & Transport Co. Pte Ltd (“KCTC”) transferred their entire equity interest comprising 
16,006,400 ordinary shares of $1 each in KCTC to the Company in exchange for the issue of 
59,999,998 ordinary shares of $0.05 each in the Company to the then existing shareholders. As a 
result, KCTC became a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.

(b)	 For	 accounting	purposes,	 the	Company	 accounted	 for	 its	 investment	 in	KCTC	as	 if	 it	 had	owned	
KCTC from the date of incorporation and adopted the following to account for the effects of the 
Restructuring Exercise:

(i) The Company recorded a cost of investment in KCTC of $16,006,400 (being the issued and 
paid up capital of KCTC) and a capital reserve of $13,006,400 (being the difference between 
the par value of the 59,999,998 ordinary shares of $0.05 issued and cost of investment in 
KCTC); and

(ii) The Group recorded a credit in its accumulated profits of $615,000, being the audited 
accumulated profit of the KCTC Group as at December 31, 2002, net of certain adjustments.
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22 REVENUE

Group
2008 2007

$’000 $’000

Revenue from contracts 111,859 135,106
Charter income from barges 8,625 5,855
Rendering of services 1,198 769
Supply of machinery, equipment and labour 73 388
Rental of machinery and equipment 442 219
Others 89 78

122,286 142,415

23 OTHER INCOME

Group
2008 2007

$’000 $’000

Gain on disposal of plant and equipment 1,571 744
Reversal of doubtful debts on trade receivables 48 35
Rental income from property 807 605
Dividend income (tax exempt one-tier) from available
 for sale investment 1,500 4,000
Interest income 53 –
Others 175 81

4,154 5,465

24 FINANCE COSTS

Group
2008 2007

$’000 $’000

Interest on:
 Bank loans 43 49
 Bank overdraft – 3
	 Finance	leases 147 124

190 176F
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25 INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Group
2008 2007

$’000 $’000

Current tax – 1
Deferred tax:
 – Current year 149 262
 – Under provision in prior years – 27

Income tax expense for the year 149 290

The income tax expense varied from the amount of income tax expense determined by applying the 
Singapore income tax rate of 18% (2007: 18%) to profit before income tax as a result of the following 
differences:

Group
2008 2007

$’000 $’000

Profit before income tax 2,120 6,466

Tax expense at the statutory income tax rate 382 1,164
Effect of change in tax rate – (15)
Tax effect of income not taxable and expenses not deductible – net (326) (488)
Deferred tax benefit (liability) not recognised 121 (5)
Tax effect of utilisation of deferred tax benefits
 previously not recognised (28) (232)
Underprovision in prior years – 27
Others – (161)

Tax expense for the year 149 290

Subject to the agreement by the Comptroller of Income Tax, the Group has tax losses carryforwards 
available for offsetting against future taxable income as follows:

Group
2008 2007

$’000 $’000

At beginning of year 196 1,485
Amount arising (utilised) during the year 669 (1,289)

At end of year 865 196

Deferred tax benefit on above not recorded 156 35

The potential tax saving relating to tax losses carry forward is not recorded as an asset due to the 
unpredictability of future taxable profits.

The realisation of the future income tax benefits from unabsorbed tax losses and temporary differences 
from capital allowances are available for an unlimited future period subject to the conditions imposed by 
law including the retention of majority shareholders as defined.
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26 PROFIT FOR THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE TO SHAREHOLDERS

Profit for the year has been arrived at after charging:

Group
2008 2007

$’000 $’000

Employee benefits expense (including directors’ remuneration) 10,099 10,250
Directors’ remuneration:
 – directors of the Company 522 805
 – director of a subsidiary 370 225
Cost of defined contribution plans included in
 employee benefits expense 827 797
Directors’ fee 102 85
Audit fees paid to auditors 87 82
Non-audit fees paid to auditors 43 41
Foreign	exchange	adjustment	loss 17 17
Held for trading investment written off – 801
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 1,235 1,028
Provision for foreseeable losses (Note 9) 4,847 23

27 EARNINGS PER SHARE

Group
2008 2007

Profit for the year attributable to shareholders (in $’000) 1,971 6,176

Number of ordinary shares for the purpose of basic earnings
 per share (in ’000) 81,000 81,000

Earnings per share (cents) 2.43 7.62

There is no dilution as there were no share options outstanding at the end of the year.

28 OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

Products and services from which reportable segments derive their revenues

In prior years, segment information reported externally was analysed on the basis of the types of projects 
executed by Group’s operating divisions (i.e. Reclamation, Water and Power, Road, bridges and others and 
Development property). However, information reported to the Group’s chief operating decision maker for 
the purposes of resource allocation and assessment of segment performance is more specifically focused 
on	the	functionality	of	services	provided.	The	Group’s	reportable	segments	under	FRS	108	are	therefore	
as follows:

– Construction
– Marine logistics
– Land-based rental
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28 OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont’d)

The Construction segment relates to the construction projects related to land reclamation, roads and 
bridges etc.

Marine logistics segment relates to the provision of tugboats and barges services.

Land-based rental segment relates to the provision of rental of machinery and equipment.

The Marine logistics and Land-based rental segments render services to support the operations of the 
Construction segment.

Information regarding the Group’s reportable segments is presented below. Amounts reported for the prior 
year	have	been	restated	to	conform	to	the	requirements	of	FRS	108.

Segment revenues and results

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results by reportable segment:

Revenue Results
2008 2007 2008 2007

$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Construction 111,860 135,242 1,080 (21)

Marine logistics 9,941 8,314 3,566 1,177

Land-based rental 4,209 3,010 966 13

126,010 146,566 5,612 1,169

Elimination (3,724) (4,151) (7,456) 809

Total 122,286 142,415 (1,844) 1,978

Unallocated corporate income 4,154 5,465

Impairment loss on investments – (801)

Finance	costs (190) (176)

Profit before income tax 2,120 6,466

Income tax expense (149) (290)

Profit after income tax 1,971 6,176

Revenue reported above represents revenue generated from external customers and inter-segmental sales 
amounting to $3,724,000 (2007 : $4,151,000) which have been eliminated on consolidation. Revenue from 
external customers of Construction, Marine logistics and Land-based rental segments was $111,860,000 
(2007 : $135,215,000), $9,823,000 (2007 : $6,624,000) and $603,000 (2007 : $576,000) respectively.

The accounting policies of the reportable segments are the same as the Group’s accounting policies 
described in Note 2. Segment profit represents the profit earned by each segment without allocation 
of rental income, gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment, dividend income, interest income, 
impairment loss on investments, finance costs, and income tax expense. This is the measure reported to 
the chief operating decision maker for the purposes of resource allocation and assessment of segment 
performance.
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28 OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont’d)

Segment assets

2008 2007
$’000 $’000

Construction 69,518 49,165
Marine logistics 9,135 8,567
Land-based rental 5,883 4,052

84,536 61,784
Elimination (9,452) (4,465)

Total segment assets 75,084 57,319
Unallocated corporate assets 4,078 256

Total assets 79,162 57,575

For	the	purposes	of	monitoring	segment	performance	and	allocating	resources	between	segments,	the	chief	
operating decision maker monitors the tangible and financial assets attributable to each segment.
All assets are allocated to reportable segments other than the assets of Koon Holdings Limited which 
are included under unallocated corporate assets representing cash and bank balances, deposits and 
prepayments.

Other segment information

Depreciation

Additions to 
property, plant and 

equipment
2008 2007 2008 2007

$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Construction 357 387 537 154

Marine logistics 397 311 373 2,421

Land-based rental 481 330 1,811 3,810

1,235 1,028 2,721 6,385

In addition to the depreciation reported above, impairment losses of $Nil (2007 : $801,000) were recognised 
in respect of investments and was disclosed as unallocated corporate expense. In addition to the above, 
the construction segment includes provision for foreseeable losses amounting to $4,847,000 (2007 : 
$23,000).
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28 OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont’d)

Geographical information

The Group operates in Singapore only and hence no further disclosure is made on the geographical 
information.

Information about major customers

Included in revenues arising from construction projects are $33,300,000 (2007 : $54,600,000) which arose 
from sales to the Group’s largest customer.

29 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS

As at the balance sheet date, the Group has:

(a) given unsecured letters of indemnity and performance bonds amounting to $14,178,000 (2007 : 
$15,460,000) to third parties in the ordinary course of business in respect of construction contracts 
undertaken;

(b) issued unsecured performance guarantee amounting to approximately $Nil (2007 : $2,208,000) in 
respect of materials supplied for a period of 10 years from the date of completion of the respective 
project from June 1997 and January 1998;

(c) obtained secured bankers guarantee issued in favour of third parties amounting to $3,435,000 (2007 
: $1,692,000) in the ordinary course of business in respect of construction contracts undertaken;

(d) given unsecured corporate guarantee amounting to $5,662,000 (2007 : $3,653,000) to a subsidiary 
for the purchase of plant and equipment;

(e) capital commitment contracted but not provided for in the consolidated financial statements 
amounting to $Nil (2007 : $183,000); and

(f) given secured letter of credit amounting to $1,387,000 (2007 : $Nil) to a supplier.
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30 OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

Group
2008 2007

$’000 $’000

Lessee

Minimum lease payments under operating leases included in profit
 and loss statement 229 1,104

At the balance sheet date, the Group has outstanding commitments under non-cancellable operating 
leases which fall due as follows:

Group
2008 2007

$’000 $’000

Within one year 239 664
In the second to fifth year inclusive 1,095 898
After five years 642 636

1,976 2,198

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group for rent of office premises. Leases are 
negotiated for an average term of 10 years.

Lessor

The Group rents out part of its premises under certain non-cancellable operating leases and under a certain 
arrangement without contract. Rental income earned during the year was $807,000 (2007: $605,000).

At the balance sheet date, the Group has contracted with tenants for the following future minimum lease 
payments:

Group
2008 2007

$’000 $’000

Within one year 1,148 379
In the second to fifth year inclusive 2,167 1,422

3,315 1,801F
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Statement Of Directors
December 31, 2008

In the opinion of the directors, the balance sheet and statement of changes in equity of the Company and 
consolidated financial statements of the Group set out on pages 41 to 83 are drawn up so as to give a true and 
fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and of the Company as at December 31, 2008 and of the results, 
changes in equity and cash flows of the Group and changes in equity of the Company for the year then ended 
and at the date of this statement there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Company will be able to pay 
its debts when they fall due.

ON	BEHALF	OF	THE	DIRECTORS

Tan Thiam Hee

Oh Koon Sun

March 6, 2009
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Statistics of Shareholdings
As at 16 March 2009

DISTRIBUTION OF SHAREHOLDINGS

SIZE OF SHAREHOLDINGS
NO. OF

SHAREHOLDERS % NO. OF SHARES %

1 – 1,000 10 2.26 9,190 0.01
1,001 – 5,000 26 5.88 101,399 0.13
5,001 – 10,000 154 34.84 1,505,700 1.86
10,001 – 100,000 185 41.86 6,743,200 8.32
100,001 AND ABOVE 67 15.16 72,640,511 89.68

TOTAL 442 100.00 81,000,000 100.00

TWENTY LARGEST SHAREHOLDERS

NO. NAME NO. OF SHARES %

1 ANG SIN LIU 19,516,465 24.09
2 SAMSU 8,000,000 9.88
3 OH KENG LIM 5,009,998 6.19
4 ONG LYE BENG 3,982,012 4.92
5 OH KOON SUN 3,528,689 4.36
6 OH LIAN LING 3,511,612 4.34
7 UNITED OVERSEAS BANK NOMINEES (PTE) LTD 3,273,000 4.04
8 ONG PANG AIK 3,200,000 3.95
9 OCBC SECURITIES PRIVATE LTD 2,189,000 2.70
10 YEO SEE TEE 1,700,000 2.10
11 UOB KAY HIAN PTE LTD 1,495,300 1.85
12 KIM ENG SECURITIES PTE. LTD. 1,405,000 1.73
13 AW GIM KOON 1,400,612 1.73
14 TEE SWEE KHENG 879,098 1.09
15 AW KIM MENG 820,612 1.01
16 LIM PANG HERN 595,000 0.73
17 CITIBANK CONSUMER NOMINEES PTE LTD 575,000 0.71
18 OH KOK HOO 560,612 0.69
19 KIM HOCK BEE TRADING PTE LTD 503,000 0.62
20 HSBC (SINGAPORE) NOMINEES PTE LTD 500,000 0.62

TOTAL 62,645,010 77.35

NUMBER	OF	HOLDERS	HOLDINGS	LESS	THAN	A	MARKETABLE	PARCEL	OF	SHARES : 18
(MARKETABLE	OF	PARCEL	OF	2,273	SHARES)
AGGREGATE	NUMBER	OF	SHARES : 24,389

Substantial Shareholders
(as recorded in the Register of Substantial Shareholders as at 16 March 2009)

Number of shares, each fully paid
Name of
Substantial Shareholder Direct Interest % Indirect Interest %

Ang Sin Liu 19,516,465 24.09 2,824,000 3.49
Samsu 8,000,000 9.88 – –
Oh Keng Lim 5,009,998 6.19 – –
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Notice Of Annual General Meeting
Company Registration No. 200303284M
ARBN 105 734 709

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Sixth Annual General Meeting of Koon Holdings Limited ARBN 105 734 709 
(the Company) will be held at Boon Lay Way, Singapore 609961, The Chevrons, in the Violet Room on Level 3, 
on 27 April 2009 at 10:30 am Singapore Standard Time for the following purposes:

AS ORDINARY BUSINESS

1. To receive and adopt the Audited Accounts for the financial year ended 31 December 
2008 together with the Reports of the Directors and the Auditors of the Company. (Resolution 1)

2. To re-elect Mr Christopher Chong Meng Tak who is retiring under Article 91 of the 
Company’s Articles of Association

Mr Christopher Chong Meng Tak will, upon re-election as a Director of the Company, 
remain the Chairman of each of the Audit Committee and Compensation Committee 
and a member of the Nominating Committee and will be considered independent 
of management. (Resolution 2)

3. To re-elect Mr Tan Thiam Hee who is retiring under Article 97 of the Company’s 
Articles of Association. (Resolution 3)

4. To consider and, if though fit, pass the following resolutions:

i. “That Mr Oh Keng Lim, who is above 70 years of age and whose office as 
Director shall be vacant at the conclusion of this Annual General Meeting 
in accordance with section 153(2) of the Companies Act, Cap 50 be and is 
hereby re-appointed as a Director of the Company to hold office until the 
next Annual General Meeting.” (Resolution 4)

ii. “That Mr Yao Chee Liew, who is above 70 years of age and whose office 
as Director shall be vacant at the conclusion of this Annual General Meeting 
in accordance with section 153(2) of the Companies Act, Cap 50 be and is 
hereby re-appointed as a Director of the Company to hold office until the 
next Annual General Meeting.”

Mr Yao Chee Liew will, upon re-election as a Director of the Company, remain 
the Chairman of the Nominating Committee and a member of the Compensation 
Committee and Audit Committee and will be considered independent of 
management. (Resolution 5)

5. To approve Directors’ fees of S$93,500 for the financial year ended 31 December 
2008. (Resolution 6)

6. To re-appoint Deloitte & Touche as the Company’s Auditors and to authorise the 
Directors to fix their remuneration. (Resolution 7)

7. To transact any other business that may be transacted at an Annual General 
Meeting.
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Notice Of Annual General Meeting
Company Registration No. 200303284M

ARBN 105 734 709

AS SPECIAL BUSINESS

8. To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as an Ordinary 
Resolution, with or without modifications:

“That pursuant to Section 161 of the Companies Act, Cap. 50 and the listing rules of 
the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited, authority be and is hereby given 
to the Directors to allot and issue:

(i) Shares in the capital of the Company (whether by way of bonus, rights or 
otherwise); or

(ii) convertible securities; or

(iii) additional convertible securities arising from adjustments made to the number 
of convertible securities previously issued in the event of rights, bonus or 
capitalisation issues; or

(iv) shares arising from the conversion of convertible securities in (ii) and (iii) 
above,

at any time and upon such terms and conditions and for such purposes as the 
Directors may in their absolute discretion deem fit provided that the aggregate 
number of equity securities to be issued pursuant to this Resolution, the listing 
rules of the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited and ASX Listing Rules 
7.1 does not exceed fifteen per cent (15%) of the equity securities on issue in the 
Company at the date of this Resolution and pursuant to this Resolution, the listing 
rules of the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited and ASX Listing Rule 7.2 
exception 1 does not exceed one hundred per cent (100%) of the total number of 
equity securities on issue in the Company via a pro-rata renounceable rights issue 
at the date of this Resolution, and, unless revoked or reduced by the Company in 
general meeting, such authority shall continue in force until the conclusion of the 
next Annual General Meeting or the expiration of the period within which the next 
Annual General Meeting of the Company is required by law to be held, whichever 
is	the	earlier.	For	the	purpose	of	determining	the	aggregate	number	of	shares	that	
may be issued pursuant to this Resolution, the percentage of the total number of 
issued equity securities is based on the total number of issued equity securities at 
the date of this Resolution after adjusting for new shares arising from the conversion 
on exercise of any convertible securities or employee stock options in issue as at 
the date of this Resolution and any subsequent consolidation or subdivision of the 
Company’s shares.” (Resolution 8)F
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9. To consider and, if thought fit, pass the following resolution as an ordinary resolution, 
with or without modifications:

“That subject to and pursuant to the share issue mandate in resolution 8 above being 
obtained, authority be and is hereby given to the Directors to issue new shares other 
than on a pro-rata basis to shareholders of the Company at an issue price per new 
share which shall be determined by the Directors in their absolute discretion provided 
that such price shall not represent more than a 20% discount for new shares to the 
weighted average price per share determined in accordance with the requirements 
of the SGX-ST.” [See Explanatory Note (ii)] (Resolution 9)

10. To consider and, if thought fit, pass the following ordinary resolution with or without 
any modifications:

“That the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby authorised to offer 
and grant options in accordance with the provisions of the Employee Share Option 
Scheme (the “ESOS”) and pursuant to Section 161 of the Companies Act, Cap 50, 
to allot and issue from time to time such number of shares in the capital of the 
Company as may be required to be issued pursuant to the exercise of the options 
under the Scheme provided always that the aggregate number of shares to be issued 
pursuant to the ESOS shall not exceed fifteen per cent (15%) of the total issued share 
capital of the Company from time to time and provided also that, subject to such 
adjustments as may be made to the ESOS as a result of any variation in the capital 
structure of the Company.” (Resolution 10)

By Order of the Board

Ong Beng Hong/Tan Swee Gek
Joint Company Secretaries

27 March 2009
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Explanatory Note:

Requirement for shareholder approval

ASX Listing Rule 7.1 requires that the Company issue no more than 15% of its issued equity securities in any one year without shareholder 
approval unless covered by an exception. ASX Listing Rule 7.2 contains an exception for a pro-rata issue.

The Listing Rules of the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited require the Company to obtain approval for any new issue of 
shares but permit the Company to obtain approval for the issue of up to 50% of shares and convertible securities (excluding treasury 
shares) on issue at the date of the resolution in the following 12 months and up to 100% of shares and convertible securities (excluding 
treasury shares) on issue at the date of the resolution in the following 12 months by way of pro rata issue. To ensure consistency between 
the ASX Listing Rules and the listing rules of the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited, Resolution 8 is limited to new issues up 
to 15% and a pro-rata issue up to 100% in the 12 months following the Resolution.

Resolution 8

I. Resolution 8, if passed, will empower the Directors from the passing of the Resolution until the date of the next Annual General 
Meeting, to allot and issue shares and convertible securities in the Company not exceeding, in total, 15% (or one hundred per 
cent (100%) if via a pro-rata renounceable rights issue) of the issued share capital of the Company at the time of passing of 
this Resolution, without seeking further shareholder approval.

Resolution 9

II. Resolution 9, if passed, will authorise the Directors to issue new shares (other than on a pro-rata basis to shareholders of the 
Company) at an issue price of up to 20% discount to the weighted average price per share.

Resolution 10

III. Exception 9 in ASX Listing Rule 7.2 provides that shareholder approval is not required for an issue under an employee incentive 
scheme if, within 3 years before the date of the issue, holders of ordinary securities have approved the issue of securities under 
the scheme as an exception to Listing Rule 7.1.

IV. Resolution 10, if passed, will authorise the Directors to issue, offer and grant options in accordance with the provisions of the 
Employee Share Option Scheme (the “ESOS”) and pursuant to Section 161 of the Companies Act, Chapter 50 to allot and 
issue shares under the ESOS. The ESOS was last approved by the shareholders of the Company in general meeting on 16 April 
2003.

V. Exception 9 in ASX Listing Rule 7.2 requires the following information be given to shareholders in support of the Resolution:

a.  Terms of the ESOS:

The Employee Share Option Scheme (“ESOS”) was approved by the shareholders at an Extraordinary General Meeting 
held on 16 April 2003. Under the rules of the ESOS, the Executive and Non-Executive Directors, and employees of the 
Company, and employees of the Associates of the Company, are eligible to participate in the ESOS.

(i) Purpose of the ESOS:

The purpose of the ESOS is to help attract new staff and retain existing staff and to keep salaries modest and 
staff turnover low. The ESOS is not for past services but for future contribution.

It is recognised that the Non-Executive Directors may also contribute significantly. Thus they may also need 
to be rewarded. However, to ensure that the majority of the Shares go to working staff no more than 0.5 
per centum of the ESOS can be extended to any one Non-Executive Director.F
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(ii) Summary of the rules of the ESOS:

Participants:

(A) Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and employees of the Company (“Company 
Employees”); and

(B) Executive Directors and employees of any associate company of a company over which the Company 
has control (“Associated Company Employees”).

ESOS Administration:

The Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors will administer the ESOS. The Compensation 
Committee will consist of a majority of Independent or Non-Executive Directors. A member of the 
Compensation Committee who is also a participant of the ESOS will not be involved in its deliberations in 
respect of options granted or to be granted to that member or to that member’s associates.

ESOS Size:

The aggregate number of options on any date will not exceed 15 per centum of the issued Shares of the 
Company on the date preceding the grant of an option.

Maximum entitlement:

No participant will exceed 10 per centum of the shares available under the ESOS. The total number of Options 
to be granted by the Compensation Committee in any one financial year will not exceed 40 per centum of 
the total number of shares available under the ESOS.

Options, exercise period and exercise price:

Options that are granted may be at the market price (“Market Price Options”) or at a discount to the 
market price of a Share, provided that the shareholders of the Company in general meeting will authorise the 
making of offers and grant of Options under the ESOS at a discount. In the event that Options are issued at a 
discount, such Options may be exercised only after the 2nd anniversary from the date of grant of the Option 
(“Incentive Options”). Market Price Options will vest over five years from the first anniversary date from the 
date of the grant. Incentive Options will vest over four years after the second anniversary date from the date 
of the grant. All Options must be exercised prior to the sixth anniversary of the relevant offer date.

Grant of options:

Under the rules of the ESOS, there are no fixed periods for the grant of options. As such, offers of the 
grant of options may be made at any time and from time to time at the discretion of the Compensation 
Committee. However, no option will be granted during the period of 30 days immediately preceding the date 
of announcement of the Company’s interim or final results (whichever the case may be). In addition, in the 
event that an announcement on any matter of an exceptional nature involving unpublished price sensitive 
information is imminent, offers may only be made after the third Trading Day from the date on which the 
aforesaid announcement is released.

Termination of options:

Special provisions in the rules of the ESOS deal with the lapse or earlier exercise of options in circumstances 
which include the termination of the participant’s employment in the Company, or associated company (as 
the case may be); the bankruptcy of the participant; the death of the participant; a take-over of the Company; 
and the winding-up of the Company.

Acceptance of options:

Offers of options made to grantees, if not accepted by the grantees within 30 days from the date of the offer, 
will lapse. Upon acceptance of the offer, the grantee must pay the Company a consideration of S$1.00.
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Rights of Shares arising:

Shares arising from the exercise of options are subject to the provisions of the Constitution of the Company. 
The Shares so allotted will upon issue rank pari passu in all respects with the then existing issued Shares, and 
will rank in full for all entitlements, including any dividend, or other distributions declared or recommended 
in respect of the then existing Shares, the record date (“Record Date”) for which falls on or before the 
relevant exercise date of the option. “Record Date” means the date as at the close of business on which 
the shareholders must be registered in order to participate in any dividend, rights, allotments or other 
distributions.

Duration of the ESOS:

The ESOS will continue in operation for a maximum duration of 10 years commencing on the date on which 
the ESOS is adopted by the Company in General Meeting, provided always that the ESOS may continue beyond 
the above stipulated period with the approval of shareholders by ordinary resolution in General Meeting and 
of any relevant authorities which may then be required.

b. No securities have been issued under the ESOS to date.

VI. Pursuant to Exception 9 (b) of ASX Listing Rule 7.2 and ASX Listing Rule 14.11.1, the Company will disregard any votes cast 
on this Resolution 10 by:

•	 a	director	of	the	Company	(except	one	who	is	ineligible	to	participate	in	the	ESOS);	and
•	 an	associate	of	a	director	of	the	Company	(except	one	who	is	ineligible	to	participate	in	the	ESOS).

However, the Company need not disregard a vote if:

•	 it	 is	cast	by	a	person	as	proxy	 for	a	person	who	 is	entitled	 to	vote,	 in	accordance	with	 the	directions	on	 the	proxy	
form; or

•	 it	is	cast	by	the	person	chairing	the	meeting	as	proxy	for	a	person	who	is	entitled	to	vote,	in	accordance	with	a	direction	
on the proxy form to vote as the proxy decides.

Notes:

(1) A member entitled to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy or proxies (not more than 
two) to attend and vote on his/her behalf. A proxy need not be a member of the Company.

(2) The instrument appointing a proxy or proxies must be under the hand of the appointor or of his/her attorney duly authorised 
in writing. Where the instrument appointing a proxy or proxies is executed by a corporation, it must be executed either under 
its seal or under the hand of an officer or attorney duly authorised.

(3) The instrument appointing a proxy or proxies must be deposited at the registered office of the Company at 17B Pandan Road, 
Koon Building, Singapore 609269 at least 48 hours before the time fixed for the Meeting.
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General Information

Board of Directors : Yao Chee Liew (Non-Executive Chairman and independent Director)
Tan Thiam Hee (Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer)
Oh Keng Lim (Executive Director)
Oh Koon Sun (Executive Director)
Christopher Chong Meng Tak (Non-Executive and independent Director)
Glenda Mary Sorrell-Saunders (Non-Executive and independent Director)

Singapore Company Secretary : Ong Beng Hong, LLB (Hons)
Tan Swee Gek, LLB (Hons)

Australia Company Secretary : Harvey	John	Gibson,	FCA

Singapore Registered Office : 17B Pandan Road
Singapore 609269

Australia Registered Office : Level 2, 174 Collins Street
Hobart, TAS 7000, Australia

Singapore Share Registrar and
Share Transfer Office

: Boardroom Corporate & Advisory Services Pte. Ltd.
(formerly known as Lim Associates (Pte) Ltd)
No 3 Church Street #08-01 Samsung Hub
Singapore 049483

Australia Share Registrar and 
Share Transfer Office

: Computershare Investor Services Pty Limited
Yarra	Falls,	452	Johnston	Street,
Abbotsford, Victoria 3067, Australia

Auditors : Deloitte & Touche LLP
Certified Public Accountants
6 Shenton Way #32-00
DBS Building Tower 2
Singapore 068809

Partner: Patrick Tan Hak Pheng
(Appointed on June 1, 2008)

Principal Bankers : The Development Bank of Singapore Ltd
6 Shenton Way
DBS Building Tower 1
Singapore 068809

United Overseas Bank Limited
80 Raffles Place, #11-00,
UOB Plaza 1
Singapore 048624

Land & Building : Head Office & Workshop
17B Pandan Road,
Koon Building
Singapore 609269

Size: 150,469 sf

Title: Leasehold 10 years with effect from 7 November 2005

Our principal place of business is at 17B Pandan Road, Singapore 609269
Our telephone number is (65) 6261 5788
Our facsimile number is (65) 6266 0117
Our website address is www.koon.com.sg
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PROXY FORM FOR MEMBERS WHO HOLD SHARES THROUGH THE CENTRAL DEPOSITORY (PTE) LIMITED (CDP) OR HAVE 
SHARES REGISTERED IN THEIR NAMES IN THE REGISTER OF MEMBERS OF KOON HOLDINGS LIMITED.

Koon Holdings Limited ARBN 105 734 709
(Incorporated in the Republic of Singapore)
Company Registration No. 200303284M

I/We (Name)

of (Address)

being a member/members of Koon Holdings Limited (the “Company”) hereby appoint

Name Address
NRIC/Passport 

Number

Proportion of my/our 
Shareholding (%)

No. of
shares %

and/or (delete as appropriate)

Name Address
NRIC/Passport 

Number

Proportion of my/our 
Shareholding (%)

No. of
shares %

or failing him or her, the Chairperson of the Meeting as my/our proxy/proxies to vote for me/us on my/our behalf at the Sixth 
Annual General Meeting of the Company, to be held Boon Lay Way, Singapore 609961, The Chevrons, in the Violet Room on 
Level 3, on 27 April 2009 at 10:30 am, and at any adjournment thereof. I/We direct my/our proxy/proxies to vote for or against 
the Resolutions to be proposed at the Meeting as indicated hereunder. If no specific direction as to voting is given, the proxy/
proxies will vote or abstain from voting at his/their discretion, as he/they will on any other matter arising at the Meeting.

The Chairperson will vote in favour of each Resolution in which he receives undirected proxies.

If the Chairperson of the meeting is appointed as your proxy, or may be appointed by default and you do 
not wish to direct your proxy how to vote as your proxy in respect of a Resolution, please place a mark in 
the box.

❑

By marking this box, you acknowledge that the Chairperson may exercise your proxy even if he has an interest 
in the outcome of the Resolution(s) and that votes cast by him other than as proxy holder will be disregarded 
because of that interest.

If you do not mark this box, and you have not directed your proxy how to vote, the Chair will not cast your 
votes on the Resolution and your votes will not be counted in calculating the required majority if a poll is 
called on the Resolution.

If you wish to instruct your proxy how to vote, insert X in the appropriate column against each item of business set out below. 
Otherwise your proxy may vote as he/she thinks fit or abstain from voting.

No. Resolutions Relating To: For Against

Ordinary Business

1. Adoption of Reports and Accounts

2. Re-appointment of Mr Christopher Chong Meng Tak

3. Re-appointment of Mr Tan Thiam Hee

4. Re-appointment of Mr Oh Keng Lim

5. Re-appointment of Mr Yao Chee Liew

6. Approval	of	Directors’	Fees

7. Re-appointment of Auditors

Special Business

8. Authority to allot and issue new shares

9. Authority to issue new shares at a discount of up to 20%

10. Authority to grant options under Employee Share Option Scheme

Dated this 27 day of March 2009.

Total number of Shares held

Signature of Shareholder(s) or Common Seal

Important: Please read notes overleaf
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Notes:

1. The proxy form set out overleaf is to be used ONLY by members who hold Shares through The Central Depository 
(Pte) Limited (CDP) or have Shares registered in their names in the Register of Members of the Company. If you 
hold Shares through CHESS Depository Nominees Pty Ltd, please use the proxy form designated for members 
who hold Shares through CHESS Depository Nominees Pty Ltd.

2. Please insert the total number of shares held by you. If you have Shares entered against your name in the 
Depository Register (as defined in Section 130A of the Companies Act, Cap. 50), you should insert that number 
of Shares. If you have Shares registered in your name in the Register of Members, you should insert that number 
of Shares. If you have Shares registered in your name in the Depository Register and Shares registered in your 
name in the Register of Members, you should insert the aggregate number of Shares entered against your name 
in the Depository Register and registered in your name in the Register of Members. If no number is inserted, 
the instrument appointing a proxy or proxies shall be deemed to relate to all the Shares held by you.

3. A member entitled to attend and vote at the Meeting is entitled to appoint one or two proxies to attend and 
vote in his stead.

4. Where a member appoints more than one proxy, the appointments shall be invalid unless he specifies the 
proportion of his shareholding (expressed as a percentage of the whole) to be represented by each proxy.

5. A proxy need not be a member of the Company.

6. The instrument appointing a proxy or proxies must be deposited at the Company’s registered office at 17B 
Pandan Road, Koon Building, Singapore 609269, not less than 48 hours before the time set for the Meeting.

7. The instrument appointing a proxy or proxies must be under the hand of the appointor or of his attorney duly 
authorised in writing. Where the instrument appointing a proxy or proxies is executed by a corporation, it must 
be executed either under its common seal or under the hand of its attorney or a duly authorised officer.

8. Where an instrument appointing a proxy is signed on behalf of the appointor by an attorney, the letter of power 
of attorney or a duly certified copy thereof must (failing previous registration with the Company) be lodged 
with the instrument of proxy; failing which the instrument may be treated as invalid.

9.	 The	Company	shall	be	entitled	to	reject	a	Proxy	Form	which	 is	 incomplete,	 improperly	completed,	 illegible	or	
where the true intentions of the appointor are not ascertainable from the instructions of the appointor specified 
on	 the	Proxy	 Form.	 In	 addition,	 in	 the	 case	of	 shares	 entered	 in	 the	Depository	Register,	 the	Company	may	
reject	a	Proxy	Form	if	the	member,	being	the	appointor,	is	not	shown	to	have	Shares	entered	against	his	name	
in the Depository Register as at 48 hours before the time appointed for holding the Meeting, as certified by the 
Central Depository (Pte) Limited to the Company.
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'A1' Civil Engineering Contractor
Land Reclamation & Civil Engineering Specialist
ISO 9001: 2000, ISO 14001:2004 and 
OHSAS 18001:2007
Blue chip client base (Singapore Government)
Strong contracts-on-hand 
Strong financial position
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